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Livermore-Amador Valley  
Water Management Agency 

 

7051 Dublin Boulevard  Dublin, CA 94568  Phone (925) 551-4841  FAX (925) 828-4907 
A Joint Powers Agency – Livermore – Pleasanton – Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

 
SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

 
Wednesday, November 21, 2018 6:00 p.m. 

 
NOTE CHANGED LOCATION: 

Pleasanton City Council Chambers 
200 Old Bernal Avenue 
Pleasanton, California 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. Order of Agenda/Acknowledgement of Posting 

(The agenda may be re-ordered by motion of the Board. The agenda has been posted virtually on 
the Agency’s website and physically in the display case outside the DSRSD Building, Pleasanton 
City Hall and Livermore City Hall at least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting and 24 hours prior 
to a special meeting.) 
 

5. Public Comment 
(Persons wishing to address the Board on any Consent item or on Agency business not listed on the 
Agenda may do so at this time. No action may be taken on items not listed on the agenda. Any item 
raised by a member of the public which is not on the agenda and may require Board action shall be 
automatically referred to staff for investigation and disposition which may include placing on a 
future agenda. Persons wishing to address the Board on any agenda item may do so once the item 
is called. After being recognized by the Board Chair, please approach the podium and begin by 
providing your name and address for the record (optional). There is a time limitation of three minutes 
per person. Non-English speakers using a translator will have a time limit of six minutes. Written 
materials must be submitted by 3:00 P.M. on the meeting day.) 

 
 6. Consent Calendar 

(All items on the Consent Calendar will be considered together by one or more action(s) of the 
Board unless a Board member pulls an item.) 
 

Action  6.a. Board Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2018 
Pages 3 – 5 (The Board will consider approving the minutes from the August 15, 2018 Board meeting.) 
 
Information 7. Financial Reporting for the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2018 and June 30, 

2019 
Page 6 (The Board will review the Financial Reports for the Fiscal Years ending June 30, 2018 and June 

30, 2019.) 
 
Action 8. Acceptance of Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018 
Pages 7 – 43 (The Board will consider accepting the Audit Report for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2018 as 

prepared by Maze & Associates.) 
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LAVWMA Special Meeting of November 21, 2018  
 

 
7051 Dublin Boulevard  Dublin, CA 94568  Phone (925) 551-4841  FAX (925) 828-4907 

A Joint Powers Agency – Livermore – Pleasanton – Dublin San Ramon Services District 
 

Information 9. LAVWMA Quarterly Report of Operations, 1st Quarter, FY2018-2019 
Pages 44 – 67  (The Board will review the Quarterly Report of Operations, 1st Quarter, FY2018-2019.) 
 
Resolution 10. Approval of City of Pleasanton Request for Retroactive Approval for 

Extension of Wastewater Service to Properties Located in Unincorporated 
Happy Valley and Remen Tract During the Period 1993 to 2014 and 
Preapproval of Up to Ten (10) Additional Extensions Each in Happy Valley 
and Remen Tract, Subject to LAFCO Approval and a Four-Year Sunset 
Limitation, Pursuant to LAVWMA Administrative Policy No. 2017-01 
Regarding Unincorporated Area Service Extensions 

Pages 68 – 105  (The Board will consider approving City of Pleasanton’s request for retroactive approval for 
extension of wastewater service to properties located in unincorporated Happy Valley and Remen 
Tract during the period 1993 to 2014 and preapproval of up to ten (10) additional extensions each 
in Happy Valley and Remen Tract, subject to LAFCO approval and a four-year sunset limitation, 
pursuant to LAVWMA Administrative Policy No. 2017-01 Regarding Unincorporated Area 
Service Extensions.) 

 
Action 11. Approval of Modification to DSRSD/LAVWMA Potential Storage Needs Due 

to a 10-Year Wet Weather Event 
Pages 106 - 113  (The Board will consider approving a modification to the DSRSD/LAVWMA Potential Storage 

Needs due to a 10-year wet weather event.) 
 
Action 12. Proclamation for Dwight L. “Pat” Howard 
Pages 114 - 115  (The Board will consider approving a Proclamation for Dwight L. “Pat” Howard for his service to 

DSRSD and LAVWMA.) 
 
Information 13. Update and Response to Various Legal and Legislative Issues 
Pages 116 – 126  (The Board will be updated on LAVWMA’s response to various legal and legislative issues.) 
 
Information 14. General Manager’s Report 
Pages 127 – 146  (The Board will review the General Manager’s Report regarding the operations and maintenance 

of the Agency and its facilities.) 
 
Information 15. Matters From/For Board Members 
  (Board members may make brief announcements or reports on his or her own activities, pose 

questions for clarification, and/or request that items be placed on a future agenda. Except as 
authorized by law, no other discussion or action may be taken.) 

 
16. Next Regular Board Meeting, Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 6:00 p.m. 
   
17. Adjournment 

 
DISABILITY ACCOMMODATION:  Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency will provide special assistance for 
disabled citizens upon at least 72 hours advance notice to the General Manager’s office (925-875-2202). If you need sign 
language assistance or written material printed in a larger font or taped, please notify the General Manager’s office as soon as 
possible. All meeting rooms are accessible to the disabled. 

AGENDA REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS:  Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to each 
item of business referred to on the agenda are available for public inspection ordinarily by the Friday before each regularly 
scheduled Board meeting, and/or at the same time the documents are provided to all, or a majority of all, of the Board, at Dublin 
San Ramon Services District, located at 7035 Commerce Circle, Pleasanton, CA, at the reception desk, and may also be made 
available online at http://www.lavwma.com/agency_meetings.php. A fee may be charged for copies. 
 
C:\Users\chuck\Documents\Weir Technical Services\LAVWMA\Agenda Packets\2018\2018-11\2018-11-21_LAWVMA_Agenda.docx 
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LAVWMA 
Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency 

DRAFT 
Minutes 

Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 
Wednesday, August 15, 2018 

Dublin San Ramon Services District Board Room 
7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, California 

6:00 p.m. 

1. Call to Order
Chair Maddi Misheloff called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call
Board Members Present: Chair Misheloff, Directors Howard, Olson, Pentin, and Marchand

Board Members Absent: Woerner

Staff Present: General Counsel Clare Gibson, General Manager Chuck Weir, Treasurer Carol
Atwood, Administrative Assistant and Recording Secretary, Sue Montague

Staff Absent: None

Others Present: Jeff Carson, DSRSD; Helen Ling, City of Livermore;

4. Order of Agenda
There were no changes to the order of the agenda.

5. Comments from the Public
There were no comments from the public.

6. Consent Calendar
a. Minutes of May 16, 2018 LAVWMA Board Meeting

Director Marchand motioned, seconded by Director Howard to approve Consent Calendar Item 
Nos. 6.a. 

The Motion passed unanimously (5-0). 

7. Financial Reporting for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018
Ms. Atwood provided a summary of the financial statements for the period ending June 30, 2018.
She noted that all items tracked as expected through the fourth quarter of the year. She noted that
this is a preliminary report and that the final report will be presented at the November 21, 2018
meeting. Director Olson asked about LAVWMA’s investments. Ms. Atwood noted that currently
all funds are invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), but that staff would

Item No. 6.a
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investigate the possibility of investing in California Asset Management Program (CAMP). She 
explained that CAMP generally has a higher rate of return and that its return rises and falls faster 
than LAIF. This was an information item requiring no action by the Board.  
 
8. LAVWMA Quarterly Reports of Operations, 3rd Quarter, FY2017-2018 
The Board reviewed the Report. Director Marchand asked about the o/s (out of service) data 
points on the April Monthly Report for LAVWMA (page 32 of 105 in the packet). Jeff Carson 
indicated that the chlorine residual meter was out of service at that time and when that occurs, 
the Operators will conduct a manual titration once per shift. The manual data should have been 
included in the report and that he would check to see that the change is made. This was an 
information item only requiring no action by the Board. 
 
9. Update to Investment Policy 
Mr. Weir and Ms. Atwood provided a summary of the recommended changes to the Investment 
Policy and that the plan was to review it every four years or as legislation requires. The Policy 
was last reviewed in 2012. The packet included a redline/strikeout version showing the 
recommended changes. Staff recommended that the Board approve resolution No. 18-02 
rescinding Resolution No. 12-01 and adopting the revised Investment Policy. 
 
Director Pentin motioned, seconded by Director Olson to approve Resolution No. 18-02 
Adopting a Revised Investment Policy and Rescinding Resolution No. 12-01. 
 
The motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 
10. Joint Defense/Common Interest and Confidentiality Agreement 
The Board reviewed the Joint Defense Agreement that was prepared by General Counsel 
Alexandra Barnhill and DSRSD General Counsel Carl Nelson. The Agreement has been 
approved by all member agencies as of June 22, 2018. It was important to have the agreement 
approved by the member agencies prior to the enforcement meeting with the Regional Board on 
June 28, 2018. The results of that meeting are confidential and will be discussed with the Board 
in closed session. Since the Agreement has already been approved by the member agencies, the 
Board was requested to ratify the agreement. 
 
Director Olson motioned, seconded by Director Howard to ratify the Joint 
Defense/Common Interest and Confidentiality Agreement. 
 
The motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 
11. Update and Response to Various Legal and Legislative Issues 
The General Manager and General Counsel updated the Board on legislation of interest. Ms. 
Gibson also informed the Board regarding two additional items. The first is AB1912 regarding 
JPAs and pensions. The bill would specify that the parties to the JPA may not specify otherwise 
with respect to retirement liabilities of the agency if the agency contracts with a public retirement 
system, and would eliminate an authorization for a party to a JPA to separately contract or 
assume responsibilities for specific debts, liabilities, or obligations of the agency. This bill would 
require member agencies of a JPA that participates in, or contracts with, a public retirement 
system, prior to filing a notice of termination or upon notice of potential termination by the 
Board of Administration of the Public Employees’ Retirement System, to mutually agree as to 
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the apportionment of the agency’s retirement obligations among themselves, provided that the 
agreement equals 100% of the retirement liability of the agency. The second bill, SB 877, would 
affect public contracts awarded on an emergency basis by extending the deadline for notifying 
the Department of Industrial Relations of award of a contract subject to prevailing wages. The 
deadline would change from 30 days after award, but no later than the first day of work on the 
project, to 30 days after award, but no later than the last day of work for emergency projects. 
This was an information item only requiring no action by the Board. 
 
12. General Manager’s Report 
Mr. Weir referred to the list of activities in his report. He provided a brief summary of the 
following items: pump purchase, asset management, and LAVWMA’s records management 
project. He showed pictures of the pump seal installation and noted that Pump No. 10 is showing 
a small leak around the seal. The third pump is scheduled to be installed the week of September 
6, 2018. He also noted that the reports on the equipment valuation were received late today. The 
most recent action item list was also included in his report. This was an information item only 
requiring no action by the Board.  
 
13. Matters From/For Board Members 
None. 
 
14. Closed Session 
At 6:31 p.m. the Board adjourned to Closed Session for the following items: 

1. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation  
Initiation of litigation pursuant to Government Code § 54956.9(d)(4) (one case). 

2. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code § 54956.9(d)(2) (one 
case). 

 
15. Public Report from Closed Session 
At 6:55 p.m. the Board reconvened to Regular Session. Ms. Gibson stated that there was no 
reportable action. 
 
16. Next Regular Board Meeting, Wednesday, November 21, 2018 
Mr. Weir noted that this is the day before Thanksgiving and asked if the Board would like to 
move the meeting to November 14, 2018. After checking calendars, the Board determined that 
the original date is preferred.  
 
17. Adjournment 
There being no further action, Chair Misheloff adjourned the meeting at 6:59 p.m.  
 
Minutes Approved by the Board __________________________, 2018. 
 
Charles V. Weir 
General Manager 
 
C:\Users\Chuck\Documents\Weir Technical Services\LAVWMA\Agenda Packets\2018\2018-08\2018-08-15_LAVWMA_Board_Mtng_Minutes.docx 
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Page 1 Agenda Explanation 
Livermore-Amador Valley 
 Water Management Agency 
Board of Directors 
November 21, 2018 

ITEM NO. 7 FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 
2018 AND JUNE 30, 2019 

Action Requested 
None at this time. This is an information item only. 

To:   LAVWMA Board of Directors 

From: Carol Atwood, LAVWMA Treasurer 

Subject:  Financial Reporting for FYE 2018 and FYE 2019 

Summary 
At the August 15, 2018 meeting, the Board reviewed the preliminary Financial Reports for the 
period ending June 30, 2018 (FYE2018). Please refer to Agenda Item No. 8, for the final Financial 
Reports for FYE2018. Unfortunately, due to the flood at DSRSD’s office and the time it took to 
relocate their offices, the Financial Report for the period ending June 30, 2019 is not yet available. 
A report for the period July 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018 will be presented at the February 20, 
2019 Board meeting.  

Recommendation 
None at this time. This is an information item only. 

Item No. 7
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Page 1 Agenda Explanation 
Livermore-Amador Valley  
 Water Management Agency 
Board of Directors 
November 21, 2018 
 

ITEM NO. 8 ACCEPTANCE OF AUDIT REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 
30, 2018 
 
Action Requested 
Accept the Audit Report for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2018 as prepared by Maze & 
Associates. 
 
To:    LAVWMA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Carol Atwood, LAVWMA Treasurer 
 
Subject:  Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018 

 
Summary 
Maze & Associates prepared and submitted the FYE 2018 Audit consisting of the attached Basic 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Communication with “Those Charged with Governance” (as 
defined therein). The Auditor’s Communication with Those Charged with Governance 
concluded that there were no observations or recommendations in this year’s Audit requiring 
action by LAVWMA. 
 
A representative from Maze & Associates will be in attendance at the meeting to answer any 
questions from the Board. 
 
Recommendation 
It is recommended the Board accept the Audit Report for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2018 as 
prepared by Maze & Associates. 
 
Attachments 

1. Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency Basic Financial Statements for 
the Year Ended June 30, 2018. 

2. Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency, Memorandum on Internal 
Control and Required Communications for the Year Ended June 30, 2018. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency 
Dublin, California 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Livermore-Amador Valley Water 
Management Agency (Agency) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of 
Contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.   

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Agency’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.   

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Agency as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

1
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic 
or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during 
our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Agency’s basic financial statements.  The Introductory Section and Supplemental Information are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The Supplementary Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In 
our opinion, the Supplemental Information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole.   

Pleasant Hill, California 
November 15, 2018 

2
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

Management’s Discussion & Analysis 

June 30, 2018 and 2017 

This section presents management’s analysis of the Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency (the 
Agency) financial condition and activities as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.  Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis (MDA) is intended to serve as an introduction to the Agency’s basic financial 
statements.  The MDA represents management’s examination and analysis of the Agency’s financial condition 
and performance.   

This information should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements that follow this section.  The 
information in the MDA is presented under the following headings: 

 Organization and Business

 Overview of the Financial Statements

 Financial Analysis

 Request for Information

Organization and Business 

Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency (the Agency) is a joint powers agency that was formed in 
1974 by a joint exercise of powers agreement between the cities of Pleasanton and Livermore and the Dublin San 
Ramon Services District.  The Agency has implemented a water quality management program involving 
wastewater disposal.  The Agency operates an export pump station and pipeline connecting with the East Bay 
Dischargers Authority’s system and discharges treated wastewater, through a deep-water outfall, into San Francisco 
Bay.  The Agency currently has an Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated September 
10, 1997, among the members.  This agreement, among other things, sets forth capacity limitations and capacity 
rights of each member as well as cost-sharing procedures for debt service and fixed operating costs related to 
capacity rights and variable operating costs related to actual use of the export facilities.  

For additional information, please see the notes to the basic financial statements. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The basic financial statements include a statement of net position, a statement of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position, a statement of cash flows, and notes to financial statements.  The report also contains 
other required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

The Agency’s basic financial statements include: 

The statement of net position presents information on the Agency’s assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net position.  It provides information about the nature and amount of resources and 
obligations at year-end. 

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the results of the Agency’s operations 
over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net position changed during the year. 

The statement of cash flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operational, capital and 
related financing, and investing activities.  This statement summarizes the annual flow of cash receipts and cash 
payments, without consideration of the timing of the event giving rise to the obligation or receipt. 

3
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

Management’s Discussion & Analysis 

June 30, 2018 and 2017 

The notes to basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the basic financial statements.  The notes to basic financial statements can be found on pages 
9 to 19 of this report. 

Financial Analysis:  

Table 1 summarizes net position at June 30, 2018 and 2017, and Table 2 summarizes revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.  Both tables also include variances from the 
prior year. 

Table 1 

Summary of Net Position 

June 30, 2018 and 2017 

2018 2017 Variance 2016 Variance
Assets:

Current assets 21,221,982$ 17,506,126$ 3,715,856$  18,200,745$ (694,619)$    
Non-current assets 345,178  337,178   8,000   337,176   2    

113,274,221 116,550,094 (3,275,873)  119,363,915 (2,813,821)   
Total assets 134,841,381 134,393,398 447,983  137,901,836 (3,508,438)   

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 9,693,923  6,288,089  3,405,834  6,656,799  (368,710)  
Long-term debt outstanding 88,138,721  93,089,245  (4,950,524)  97,826,612  (4,737,367)   

Total Liabilities 97,832,644  99,377,334  (1,544,690)  104,483,411 (5,106,077)   

Net position:

26,105,620  25,059,610  1,046,010  23,759,467  1,300,143    
Unrestricted 10,903,117  9,956,454    946,663   9,658,960  297,494   

Total net position 37,008,737$ 35,016,064$ 1,992,673$  33,418,427$ 1,597,637$   

Capital assets, 
 net of accumulated depreciation

Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt

 The total assets of the Agency increased $0.5 million between 2018 and 2017, which had decreased $3.5
million from 2016. The increase in current assets of $3.7 million is due to a JPA member paying their
contribution for FYE2019 in advance. The increase in current assets is offset by $3.3 million decrease is
capital assets which is primarily due to depreciation (Note 3).

 Total liabilities decreased $1.5 million between 2018 and 2017, which had decreased $5.1 million from 2016.
There is an increase in current liabilities of $3.4 million which is primarily due a JPA member paying their
contribution for FYE2019 in advance. The increase in current liabilities is offset by a $4.9 million decrease
in long-term liabilities, which is due to debt payments and amortization of bond issuance premium (Note 5).

 Net position overall has increased the last two years as debt is being paid down.

4
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

Management’s Discussion & Analysis 

June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Table 2 

Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

2018 2017 Variance 2016 Variance
Operating revenues 11,613,795$ 11,775,413$ (161,618)$    11,405,848$ 369,565$     
Operating expenses 6,268,924 6,486,239    (217,315)     6,220,102 266,137       

Net operating income (expenses) 5,344,871 5,289,174    55,697        5,185,746 103,428       

Non operating revenues (expenses) (3,352,198)  (3,691,537)  339,339       (3,914,201)  222,664       

Change in net position $1,992,673 $1,597,637 $395,036 $1,271,545 $326,092

 Operating revenue comes from member agencies to cover operating costs, debt and replacement reserves.
Fiscal year end 2018 revenue decreased slightly due to decrease in funds needed to cover operating costs.

 Operating expenses decreased $0.2 million in fiscal year end 2018 after an increase of $0.3 million in the
prior year.  The fluctuation in operating expenses is primarily due to energy costs.  Energy is over one third
of the operating budget when depreciation is excluded from total operating expenses.

 Non-operating revenues (expenses) reflect a net decrease in non-operating expenses over the last two years
primarily due to the decrease in bond interest expense as debt is paid down.

Request for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide readers with a general overview of the Livermore-Amador Valley 
Water Management Agency’s finances and demonstrate the Agency’s accountability for the monies it manages.  
If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, please contact: LAVWMA Agency 
Treasurer, 7051 Dublin Blvd., Dublin, CA 94568. 

5
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2B) $21,139,725 $17,324,839

Interest receivable 82,257 41,286

Due from members (Note 4) 140,001

Total current assets 21,221,982 17,506,126

Non-current assets:

Advances to DSRSD 345,178 337,178

Capital assets (Note 3):

  Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 113,274,221 116,550,094

Total non-current assets 113,619,399 116,887,272

Total assets 134,841,381 134,393,398

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 196,542 135,809

Due to members (Note 4) 151,230 313

Advances from members 3,073,559

Interest payable 1,737,552 1,830,084

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 4,535,040 4,321,883

Total current liabilities 9,693,923 6,288,089

Long-term liabilities:

Bond issuance premium, net of amortization (Note 5) 5,505,160 5,920,644

Long-term debt less current portion (Note 5) 82,633,561 87,168,601

Total long-term liabilities 88,138,721 93,089,245

Total liabilities 97,832,644 99,377,334

NET POSITION (Note 7)

Net investment in capital assets 26,105,620 25,059,610

Unrestricted 10,903,117 9,956,454

Total net position $37,008,737 $35,016,064

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

6
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017

Operating revenues:

Service charges (Note 4) $11,764,975 $11,635,725

Service charges - other (Note 4) (151,180) 139,688 

Total operating revenues 11,613,795 11,775,413 

Operating expenses:

Energy 1,051,885 1,296,580

EBDA O&M costs 688,911 672,704

Operations agreement 783,448 761,199

Professional services 203,213 139,432

Livermore sole use O&M 44,278 44,910

Miscellaneous 65,311 56,385 

Repairs and maintenance 54,491 147,283 

Depreciation and amortization 3,377,387 3,367,746 

Total operating expenses 6,268,924 6,486,239 

Operating income 5,344,871 5,289,174 

Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Interest income 235,625 106,112 

Bond interest expense (3,587,823) (3,797,649) 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (3,352,198) (3,691,537) 

Change in net position 1,992,673 1,597,637 

Net position, beginning of year 35,016,064 33,418,427 

Net position, end of year $37,008,737 $35,016,064

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

7

Item No. 8

18 of 146



2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers 14,778,384           $11,785,658

Payments to suppliers (2,679,887)            (3,746,997)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 12,098,497           8,038,661             

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition of capital assets (101,514)               (553,925)

Principal paid on long-term debt (4,321,883)         (4,113,964)

Interest paid on long-term debt (4,095,840)         (4,301,259)

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related

 financing activities (8,519,237)            (8,969,148)            

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest on cash and investments 235,626             106,112             

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 235,626             106,112             

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,814,886             (824,375)               

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period 17,324,839           18,149,214

Cash and cash equivalents - end of period $21,139,725 $17,324,839

Reconciliation of operating income  to net cash 

provided (used) in operating activities:

Operating income $5,344,871 $5,289,174

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to cash flows from 

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 3,377,387             3,367,746

Changes in certain assets and liabilities:

Decrease in due from members 140,001

(Decrease) in advance to members (8,000) 

(Increase) in interest receivable (40,971) (17,015)

Decrease in miscellaneous accounts receivable 27,260

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 60,733               (285,139)

Increase (decrease) in due to members 150,917             (343,365)

Increase in advance from members 3,073,559          
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $12,098,497 $8,038,661

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. General

Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency (the Agency) is a joint powers agency that was formed
in 1974 by a joint exercise of powers agreement between the cities of Pleasanton and Livermore and the Dublin-
San Ramon Services District.  The Agency has implemented a water quality management program involving
wastewater disposal.  The Agency operates an export pipeline connecting with the East Bay Dischargers
Authority’s system and discharges treated wastewater, through a deep-water outfall, into San Francisco Bay.
The Agency currently has an Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated September 10,
1997, among the members.  This agreement, among other things, sets forth capacity limitations and capacity
rights of each member as well as cost-sharing procedures for debt service and fixed operating costs related to
capacity rights and variable operating costs related to actual use of the export facilities.

B. Reporting Entity

The Agency is the only entity included in these financial statements.

C. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Agency are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity.  The Agency maintains a proprietary fund that is used to account for the financing of goods
or services provided by the Agency to other governments on a cost-reimbursement basis.

The Agency is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for financial
statement purposes. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs and
expenses, including depreciation, of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

An enterprise fund is used to account for activities similar to those in the private sector, where the proper
matching of revenues and costs is important and the full accrual basis of accounting is required. With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities of the enterprise are recorded in its balance sheet, all revenues
are recognized when earned and all expenses, including depreciation, are recognized when incurred.

D. Basis of Accounting

Records of the Agency are maintained on the accrual basis.  Revenues are recognized when earned and
expenses are recognized when incurred.

Operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the
principal activity of the fund.  Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values.  Non-exchange transactions, in which the Agency gives or receives value without
directly receiving or giving equal value in exchange, include member contributions.

Revenue from member contributions is recognized in the fiscal year in which it is earned.  Nonoperating
revenues, such as interest income, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. Use of Estimates

The basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, and as such, include amounts based on informed estimates and judgments of management with
consideration given to materiality. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency places certain funds with the State of California’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The
Agency is a voluntary participant in LAIF, which is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429
under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California and the Pooled Money Investment Board. The
State Treasurer’s office pools these funds with those of other governmental agencies in the state and invests
the cash. The fair value of the Agency’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial
statements based upon the Agency’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).

The monies held in the pooled investment funds are not subject to categorization by risk category. The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded
on the amortized cost basis. Funds are accessible and transferable to the master account with twenty-four
hours’ notice. Financial statements for LAIF can be obtained from the California State Treasurer’s Office:
State Treasurer’s Office, 915 Capitol Mall, Suite 110, Sacramento, CA 95814.

Cash and investments are used in preparing the statement of cash flows because these assets are highly liquid
and are expended to liquidate liabilities arising during the year.

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Assets with an initial cost of more than $10,000 are capitalized.
Infrastructure assets with an initial cost of more than $25,000 are capitalized. Depreciation of property and
equipment is provided on the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Pipeline and Export Facility 50 years 
Pump Station 25 years 
Intangible 20 years 
Equipment  5-10 years

H. Bond Issuance Premium

Bond issuance premium is amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the bond.
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
 

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
I. Fair Value Measurements 
 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Agency categorizes its fair 
value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. 
The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three 
levels based on the extent to which inputs used in measuring fair value are observable in the market.  
 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 

Level 2 inputs are inputs - other than quoted prices included within level 1 - that are observable for an 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

 
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. 

 
If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the fair value 
hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input that is significant to 
the entire measurement. 

 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
A. Policies  
 

California Law generally requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities 
with a market value of 110% of the Agency’s cash on deposit or first trust deed mortgage notes with a value 
of 150% of the deposit as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this collateral is held in a 
separate investment pool by another institution in the Agency’s name and places the Agency ahead of general 
creditors of the institution. The Agency has waived collateral requirements for the portion of deposits covered 
by federal depository insurance. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Agency’s cash in bank was insured or 
collateralized as discussed above. 
 
Cash and investments are recorded at market value. 

 
B. Composition 
 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following as of June 30:  
 

2018 2017

Cash in Bank $3,836,875 $211,962
California Local Agency Investment Fund 17,302,850 17,112,877

Total cash and cash equivalents $21,139,725 $17,324,839
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

C. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the Agency’s Investment Policy

The Agency’s Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the Agency to invest in the
following provided the credit ratings of the issuers are acceptable to the Agency; and approved percentages
and maturities are not exceeded.  The table below also identifies certain provisions of the California
Government Code, or the Agency’s Investment Policy where the Agency’s Investment Policy is more
restrictive.

Limit
Minimum 

Rating
Maximum 
Maturity Authorized Investment

None None 5 years Collateralized Certificate of Deposits purchased from banks or savings and loan institutions
as authorized by statute

30% None 5 years Negotiable Certificates of Deposit

None None 5 years U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes, and Bonds

None None 5 years Securities of Government Agencies (e.g., Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National
Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Student Loan Marketing
Association, Government National Mortgage Association , Federal Farm Credit Bank,
Tennessee Valley Authority)

30% A 5 years Medium-Term Corporate Notes

20% None N/A Mutual Funds (Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies
who invest in securities authorized by § 53601

None None 5 years Indebtedness issued by LAVWMA or any local agency in California

Maximum 
allowed by 

LAIF
None N/A The State of California Local Agency Investment Fund

D. Local Agency Investment Fund

The Agency is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.
The Agency reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF, which is the same as
the value of the pool share. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.  Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio
are collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to
certain state funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises,
United States Treasury Notes and Bills, and corporations. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, these investments
matured in an average of 193 and 194 days, respectively.

E. Investment Valuation

The Agency categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value of
the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The Agency's only investment in the Local Agency Investment Fund is exempt from the fair value
measurement hierarchy.
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS  

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2018: 

Balance at Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2016 Additions Retirements June 30, 2017 Additions June 30, 2018

Construction in progress $50,364 ($50,364)
Capital assets being depreciated:

Pipeline 118,236,074     $118,236,074 $118,236,074
Pump station 18,194,257       $604,289 18,798,546       $101,514 18,900,060       
Export facility 5,767,500         5,767,500         5,767,500         
Intangibles 10,000,000       10,000,000 10,000,000

Total capital assets being depreciated/amortized: 152,248,195 604,289 (50,364) 152,802,120 101,514 152,903,634
Less:

Accumulated depreciation (27,126,706)      (3,064,716)        (30,191,422)      (3,074,357) (33,265,779)      
Accumulated amortization (5,757,574)        (303,030)           (6,060,604)        (303,030) (6,363,634)        

Net capital assets being depreciated/amortized $119,363,915 ($2,763,457) ($50,364) $116,550,094 ($3,275,873) $113,274,221

Depreciation and amortization expense for the Agency for June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 was $3,377,387 and 
$3,367,746, respectively. 
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

NOTE 4 – SERVICE CHARGES TO MEMBERS 

Under the terms of the Agency’s Sewer Service Contract with its members, the members pay the Agency a 
service charge equal to their share of the actual costs of operating the pipeline. The members are required to 
make advance payments to the Agency based on estimated costs. When advance payments are more or less 
than actual costs, differences are billed or refunded to the members in accordance with their participation 
percentage as specified in the agreement. 

The following schedule reconciles the advance payments received from members with the actual costs of 
operating the pipeline to determine what is owed to or from the members as of June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017
Advance payments received from members
   City of Livermore $3,391,877 $3,347,283
   City of Pleasanton 4,031,683 3,980,631
   Dublin San Ramon Services District 4,341,415 4,307,811
      Total services charges $11,764,975 $11,635,725

Advance payments received from members $11,764,975 $11,635,725
Interest earned on operating advances 22,950 8,421
Less advances for:

Debt service (8,006,525) (8,003,975)
Joint Use replacement (400,000) (400,000)

Net available for operations and maintenance 3,381,400 3,240,171

Operations and maintenance expenses:
Power 1,051,885 1,296,580
LAVWMA share of EBDA O&M Costs 688,911 672,704
Operations agreement 769,186 761,199
EBDA capacity payment 411,248 411,248
Professional services 203,213 139,432
Livermore Sole Use O&M 44,278 44,910
Miscellaneous 61,499 53,786

      Total operations and maintenance expenses 3,230,220 3,379,859

Amount due to (due from) members, net $151,180 ($139,688)

Amount due to (due from):
City of Livermore $52,662 ($117,743)
City of Pleasanton 84,936 313
Dublin San Ramon Services District 13,582 (22,258)

$151,180 ($139,688)
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

NOTE 5 – LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of changes in general long-term liabilities during the year ended June 30, 2018: 

Amount

Balance Balance due within More than

June 30, 2017 Retirements June 30, 2018 one year one year

Revenue Bonds

2011 Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds

2% - 5%, due 8/1/2031 $86,845,000 $4,050,000 $82,795,000 $4,255,000 $78,540,000

Loans Payable

EBDA Loan payable

3%-6% , due 8/1/2030 4,645,484 271,883 4,373,601 280,040 4,093,561

Total Long-Term Debt 91,490,484 4,321,883 87,168,601 4,535,040 82,633,561

Plus: Unamortized bond premium 5,920,644 415,484 5,505,160 5,505,160

Total Long-Term Debt, net $97,411,128 $4,737,367 $92,673,761 $4,535,040 $88,138,721

The following is a summary of changes in general long-term liabilities during the year ended June 30, 2017: 

Amount

Balance Balance due within More than

June 30, 2016 Retirements June 30, 2017 one year one year

Revenue Bonds

2011 Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds

2% - 5%, due 8/1/2031 $90,695,000 $3,850,000 $86,845,000 $4,050,000 $82,795,000

Loans Payable

EBDA Loan payable

3%-6% , due 8/1/2030 4,909,448 263,964 4,645,484 271,883 4,373,601

Total Long-Term Debt 95,604,448 4,113,964 91,490,484 4,321,883 87,168,601

Plus: Unamortized bond premium 6,336,128 415,484 5,920,644 5,920,644

Total Long-Term Debt, net $101,940,576 $4,529,448 $97,411,128 $4,321,883 $93,089,245

A. 2011 Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds

The Agency issued $105,345,000 of 2011 Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds on September 28, 2011. Proceeds
of the issuance were used to refund and retire the Series A Sewer Revenue Bonds and to pay costs of
issuance.  Principal payments are due annually beginning August 1, 2012 through August 1, 2031.

Debt service on the 2011 Bonds is repayable from Agency Net Revenues which are defined as Gross
Revenues less Maintenance and Operations costs, excluding in all cases depreciation, replacement and
obsolescence charges or reserves therefore, debt service, amortization of intangibles or other book-keeping
entries of a similar nature, and costs paid out of the Sole-Use, Dual-Use and Joint-Use Replacement Funds.
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

NOTE 5 – LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Member Liens for Repayment of 2011 Bonds: Under an Amended And Restated Sewer Service Contract 
dated October 1, 2011, between the Agency and Members, the Members pledge and create, in favor of 
LAVWMA and the Trustee for the 2011 Bonds, a lien on the Net Revenues of their respective wastewater 
systems (the “Sewer Systems”), to pay to LAVWMA the amounts owed in order for LAVWMA to pay debt 
service on the 2011 Bonds. There are three important limitations with respect to this pledge of Net Revenues. 
First, this lien is subordinate to the Members’ existing obligations payable from their Net Revenues, as well 
as  obligations payable from their Net Revenues to be issued in the future by the Members to finance or 
refinance improvements to their respective Sewer System. Second, for DSRSD and Pleasanton, “Net 
Revenues” are not defined in the Sewer Service Contract to include all of the fees, rates and charges collected 
by DSRSD and Pleasanton in connection with their Sewer System; DSRSD and Pleasanton have only pledged 
regional service charges as security for their obligation to make the Payments. Third, Pleasanton, in its 
capacity as the largest customer of DSRSD’s Sewer System, is only obligated to levy regional charges and 
fees established by DSRSD and to transfer the amount collected to DSRSD. 

Pursuant to the official statement, each member agency is required to set rates to achieve coverage of 1.1 
times debt service.   

B. Discharge Rights Capital Buy-In Fee Obligation

On April 26, 2007, the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) and LAVWMA signed a new Master
Agreement, superseding all previous agreements, which confirms LAVWMA’s ownership of firm capacity
discharge rights of 19.72 MGD (millions of gallons per day) in EBDA’s system, and also requires EBDA to
provide LAVWMA with an additional 21.48 MGD in interruptible discharge rights for a capital buy-in of
$10,000,000. LAVWMA previously had entered into an agreement for additional capacity for a purchase
price of $3,000,000 plus accrued interest. The remaining $7,000,000, plus accrued interest, is payable in
annual installments through 2030. Interest is based on the change in the Consumer Price Index-All Urban
Consumers (CPI-U) for the San Francisco Bay Area. The interest rate includes a floor and ceiling of 3% and
6%, respectively.

C. Debt Service Maturity

At June 30, 2018, future annual repayment requirements for long-term debt were as follows:

For The Year
 Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2019 $4,535,040 $3,880,058 $8,415,098
2020 4,763,441 3,653,407 8,416,848

2021 5,002,094 3,415,254 8,417,348
2022 5,246,007 3,165,216 8,411,223
2023 5,510,187 2,902,661 8,412,848

2024-2028 31,553,573 10,584,343 42,137,916
2029-2032 30,558,259 2,757,284 33,315,543

Total payments due $87,168,601 $30,358,223 $117,526,824
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

NOTE 6 – RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Agency’s insurance coverage is as follows: 

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft, damage, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disaster.  The Agency joined together with other entities to 
form the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA), a public entity risk pool currently operating as 
a common risk management and insurance program for member entities.  The purpose of SDRMA is to spread 
the adverse effects of losses among the member entities and to purchase excess insurance as a group, thereby 
reducing its cost.  The Agency pays annual premiums to SDRMA for its general, liability, and property damage. 

SDRMA is governed by a Board composed of one representative from each member agency.  The Board 
controls the operations of SDRMA including selection of management and approval of operating budgets, 
independent of any influence by member entities. 

In addition to the primary insurance types provided for through SDRMA listed above, the Agency also 
maintains commercial fidelity bonds, public employee dishonesty and public official bonds to protect against 
employee theft or defalcation.  Settled claims for SDRMA or commercial fidelity bonds have not exceeded 
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

The following is a summary of the insurance policies carried by the Agency as of June 30, 2018: 

Company Name Type of Coverage Limits Deductibles
Uninsured/underinsured motorists Each occurrence $750,000 None
Auto Liability Comprehensive liability 5,000,000 $1,000
Property coverage Comprehensive liability 1,000,000,000 500
Employee dishonesty Blanket bond 500,000 None 

Personal liability coverage (board) Comprehensive liability 500,000 None

General liability Comprehensive liability 5,000,000 500

Public officials and employee errors Comprehensive liability 5,000,000 None

Employment practices liability Comprehensive liability 5,000,000 None
Employee benefits liability Comprehensive liability 5,000,000 None
Boiler and machinery coverage Comprehensive liability 100,000,000 None

Claims and judgments, including provision for claims incurred but not reported, are recorded when a loss is 
deemed probable of assertion and the amount of the loss is reasonably determinable.  As discussed above, the 
Agency has coverage for such claims, but it had retained the risk for the deductible or uninsured portion of these 
claims. 

The Agency’s liability for uninsured claims is limited to general liability claims, as discussed above, and was 
estimated to be immaterial.  The Agency has not exceeded its insurance coverage limits in any of the last 
three years.   
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
 

 

NOTE 7 – NET POSITION 
 

Net Position is the excess of all the Agency’s assets over all its liabilities. Net Position is divided into three 
categories which are described as follows:  

 Net investment in capital assets describes the portion of net position that is represented by the 
current net book value of the Agency’s capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt 
issued to finance these assets.  

 Restricted describes the portion of net position that is restricted as to use by the terms and 
conditions of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws or other restrictions 
which the Agency cannot unilaterally alter. These principally include developer fees received for 
use on capital projects, debt service requirements, and redevelopment funds restricted to low and 
moderate income purposes. The Agency had no restricted net position.  

 Unrestricted describes the portion of net position that is not restricted to use.  

 

NOTE 8 – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 

The Agency is involved in various claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. Agency 
management, based upon the opinion of legal counsel, is of the opinion that the ultimate resolution of such 
matters will not have a materially adverse effect on the Agency’s financial position or results of operations. 
 

NOTE 9 – MEMBER EQUITY ALLOCATION 
 

A review of the member equity calculation was conducted and each type of asset is allocated according to 
contractually agreed ownership shares. At June 30, 2018, the members’ respective shares of the Agency’s net 
position, based on this calculation, are as follows: 

Operation & 
Maintenance

EBDA 
Capacity

2011 Debt 
Service*

Joint-Use 
Replacement

Dual-Use 
Replacement

Sole-Use 
Replacement TOTAL

Net Position:
Total Assets $2,208,199 $3,636,365 $1,752,049 $121,093,176 $492,080 $5,659,512 $134,841,381
Total Liabilities 1,636,250        4,504,809     91,627,074          64,511                97,832,644       

$571,949 ($868,444) ($89,875,025) $121,028,665 $492,080 $5,659,512 $37,008,737

Allocation:
 Livermore 30.10% 18.18% 27.83% 30.10% 100.00%
 Pleasanton  34.95% 34.14% 33.27% 34.95% 50.00%
 DSRSD 34.95% 47.68% 38.90% 34.95% 50.00%

Member Equity:
 Livermore $172,157 ($157,883) ($25,011,481) $36,429,627 $5,659,512 $17,091,932
 Pleasanton  199,896 (296,487) (29,905,667) 42,299,518 $246,040 12,543,300
 DSRSD 199,896 (414,074) (34,957,878) 42,299,518 246,040 7,373,502

$571,949 ($868,444) ($89,875,026) $121,028,663 $492,080 $5,659,512 $37,008,734

* Note that for debt service, blended allocations are shown above.  Actual allocations are below:
Livermore Pleasanton DSRSD

  Repair (30.46% of total debt) 39.95% 36.71% 23.34%
  Expansion (69.54% of total debt) 22.52% 31.77% 45.71%  
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

NOTE 9 – MEMBER EQUITY ALLOCATION (Continued) 

At June 30, 2017, the members’ respective share of the Agency’s net position, based on this calculation, is as 
follows: 

Operation & 
Maintenance

EBDA 
Capacity

2011 Debt 
Service*

Joint-Use 
Replacement

Dual-Use 
Replacement

Sole-Use 
Replacement TOTAL

Net Position:
Total Assets $707,980 $3,939,395 $24,842 $123,323,415 $494,686 $5,903,080 $134,393,398
Total Liabilities 136,031 4,784,849  94,456,363         91 99,377,334      

$571,949 ($845,454) ($94,431,521) $123,323,324 $494,686 $5,903,080 $35,016,064

Allocation:
 Livermore 30.10% 18.18% 27.83% 30.10% 100.00%
 Pleasanton 34.95% 34.14% 33.27% 34.95% 50.00%
 DSRSD 34.95% 47.68% 38.90% 34.95% 50.00%

Member Equity:
 Livermore $172,157 ($153,704) ($26,279,516) $37,120,321 $5,903,080 $16,762,338
 Pleasanton 199,896 (288,638) (31,421,828) 43,101,502 $247,343 11,838,275
 DSRSD 199,896 (403,112) (36,730,176) 43,101,502 247,343 6,415,453

$571,949 ($845,454) ($94,431,520) $123,323,325 $494,686 $5,903,080 $35,016,066

* Note that for debt service, blended allocations are shown above.  Actual allocations are below:
Livermore Pleasanton DSRSD

 Repair (30.46% of total debt) 39.95% 36.71% 23.34%
 Expansion (69.54% of total debt) 22.52% 31.77% 45.71%
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF SUB FUND ACCOUNT BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2018

Maintenance EBDA 2011 Debt
& Operation Capacity Service

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents $1,758,508 $1,740,057
Investments 413,515 5,208 
Interest receivable 8,176 6,784 
Advances to members 28,000 
Capital assets, net of accumulated
      depreciation $3,636,365

Total assets 2,208,199 3,636,365 1,752,049 

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 192,231 
Due to members 151,230 
Advances from members 1,292,789 1,720,570 
Interest payable 131,208 1,606,344 
Long-term debt:

Bond issuance premium, 
net of amortization 5,505,160 

Due within one year 280,040 4,255,000 

Due in more than one year 4,093,561 78,540,000 

Total liabilities 1,636,250 4,504,809 91,627,074

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (737,236) (82,795,000)            
Unrestricted 571,949 (131,208) (7,080,025)              

Total net position $571,949 ($868,444) ($89,875,025)
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Joint-use Dual-use Sole-use
Replacement Replacement Replacement Total

$316,946 $12,139 $9,225 $3,836,875
14,937,156 410,257 1,536,714 17,302,850 

59,636 1,644 6,017 82,257 
317,178 345,178 

105,462,260           68,040 4,107,556 113,274,221           

121,093,176           492,080 5,659,512 134,841,381           

4,311 196,542 
151,230 

60,200 3,073,559 
1,737,552 

5,505,160 
4,535,040 

82,633,561 

64,511 97,832,644 

105,462,260           68,040 4,107,556 26,105,620 
15,566,405 424,040 1,551,956 10,903,117 

$121,028,665 $492,080 $5,659,512 $37,008,737

Repair and Replacement Reserve
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF SUB FUND ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Maintenance EBDA 2011 Debt
& Operation Capacity Service

Operating revenues:
Service charges - City of Livermore $968,438 $74,902 $2,228,137
Service charges - City of Pleasanton 1,087,094             140,657 2,664,132             
Service charges - Dublin San Ramon Services District 890,968 196,441 3,114,206             
Service charges other (150,478)               (752) 50 

Total operating revenues 2,796,022 411,248 8,006,525             

Operating expenses:
Power 1,051,885             
LAVWMA share of EBDA O&M 688,911 
Operations agreement 769,186 
Professional services 203,213 
Livermore sole use O&M 44,278 
Miscellaneous 61,499 23 

Total operating expenses and capital outlay 2,818,972             23
Repairs and maintenance

Total operating expenses 2,818,972             23

Operating income (loss) (22,950) 411,248 8,006,502             

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Depreciation and amortization (303,030)
Interest income 22,950 6,609 
Bond interest expense (131,208)               (3,456,615)            

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 22,950 (434,238)               (3,450,006)            

Changes in net position (22,990) 4,556,496             

Net position beginning of period 571,949 (845,454) (94,431,521)          

Net position end of period $571,949 ($868,444) ($89,875,025)
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Joint-use Dual-use Sole-use
Replacement Replacement Replacement Total

$120,400 $3,391,877
139,800 4,031,683             
139,800 4,341,415             

(151,180)               

400,000 11,613,795           

1,051,885             
688,911 

14,262 783,448 
203,213 

44,278 
3,356 $93 $340 65,311 

17,618 93 340 2,837,046             
54,491 54,491 

72,109 93 340 2,891,537             

327,891 (93) (340) 8,722,258             

(2,805,095)            (7,560) (261,702)               (3,377,387)            
182,545 5,047 18,474 235,625 

(3,587,823)            
(2,622,550)            (2,513) (243,228)               (6,729,585)            

(2,294,659)            (2,606) (243,568)               1,992,673             

123,323,324         494,686 5,903,080             35,016,064           

$121,028,665 $492,080 $5,659,512 $37,008,737

Repair and Replacement Reserve
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MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

Board of Directors 
Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency 
Dublin, California 

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the Livermore-Amador Valley Water 
Management Agency (Agency) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Agency’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control.  

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Agency’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. In addition, because 
of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management override of controls, 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Directors, others 
within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
November 15, 2018 
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REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS 

Board of Directors 
Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency 
Dublin, California 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management 
Agency (Agency) for the year ended June 30, 2018. Professional standards require that we communicate 
to you the following information related to our audit under generally accepted auditing standards.  

Significant Audit Findings 

Accounting Policies  

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the Agency are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year. 

Unusual Transactions, Controversial or Emerging Areas 

We noted no transactions entered into by the Agency during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period.  

Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the Agency’s financial 
statements were: 

Estimated Fair Value of Investments: As of June 30, 2018, the Agency held approximately $21.1 
million of cash and investments as measured by fair value as disclosed in Note 2 to the financial 
statements. Fair value is essentially market pricing in effect as of June 30, 2018. These fair values 
are not required to be adjusted for changes in general market conditions occurring subsequent to 
June 30, 2018. 

Estimate of Depreciation:  Management’s estimate of the depreciation is based on useful lives 
determined by management.  These lives have been determined by management based on the 
expected useful life of assets as disclosed in Note 1G to the financial statements.  We evaluated 
the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciation estimate and determined that it 
is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
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Disclosures 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.  

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit.  

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. We did not propose any audit adjustments that, in our judgment, could have a significant 
effect, either individually or in the aggregate, on the Agency’s financial reporting process. 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely uncorrected misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management.  We have no such misstatements to report to the Board of Directors. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in a management 
representation letter dated November 15, 2018. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the Agency’s financial statements or a determination of the type 
of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Agency's auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 
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Other Information Accompanying the Financial Statements 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information that accompanies and 
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquires of management 
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the required supplementary 
information and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the required supplementary 
information. 

We were engaged to report on the supplementary information which accompany the financial statements, 
but are not required supplementary information.  With respect to this supplementary information, we made 
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the 
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared 
and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

****** 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
November 15, 2018 
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Page 1 Agenda Explanation 
Livermore-Amador Valley  
 Water Management Agency 
Board of Directors 
November 21, 2018 
 

ITEM NO. 9 LAVWMA QUARTERLY REPORTS OF OPERATIONS, 1ST QUARTER, 
FY 2018-2019 
 
Action Requested 
None at this time. 
 
Summary 
LAVWMA’s Quarterly Report of Operations for the 1st Quarter, FY 2018-2019 is attached for 
the Board’s review. These quarterly reports are prepared by DSRSD staff and summarize all 
LAVWMA operations and maintenance activity for each quarter. Jeff Carson, DSRSD 
Operations Manager, will be available to answer any questions from the Board. Please note that 
the report has been modified to include a Table of Contents as well as a Quarter at a Glance. The 
Quarter at a Glance includes new graphs that show Flows and pumping Efficiency, Energy 
Consumption, Budget Variance, and Work Order History.  
 
The Board should pay particular notice to the pumping efficiency which has increased from 50% 
to nearly 75%. This is primarily due to the three new pumps that are now in service and are 
carrying the pumping load. The third pump did not go into service until October 31, 2018. 
During the dry season, only two pumps are required to meet flow demands. Also note that the 
cost per million gallons has dropped from approximately $450/MG to $382/MG in September. 
Lastly, expenses to date are running well below budget, primarily due to reduced energy costs 
for pumping.  
 
Special thanks go to Gemma Lathi from DSRSD for her efforts in revising the quarterly report.  
 
Recommendation 
None at this time. This is an information item only.  

Item No. 9

44 of 146



LAVWMA

QUARTERLY REPORT OF OPERATIONS 1st Quarter, FY 2018-2019

Item No. 9

45 of 146



QUARTERLY REPORT OF OPERATIONS 
LAVWMA PUMPING AND CONVEYANCE SYSTEM 

1st Quarter FY 2018‐2019: July to September 2018 
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LAVWMA FYE 2019 FIRST QUARTER AT A GLANCE
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LAVWMA FYE 2019 FIRST QUARTER AT A GLANCE
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QUARTERLY REPORT OF OPERATIONS 
LAVWMA PUMPING AND CONVEYANCE SYSTEM 

1st Quarter FY 2018-2019: July to September 2018 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The LAVWMA pumping and effluent conveyance system operated normally during the 
first quarter of FY 2018-2019.  During the quarter, a total of 562 million gallons of fully 
treated secondary effluent were pumped to San Francisco Bay via the East Bay 
Dischargers Authority (EBDA) outfall diffuser and San Leandro Sample Station (SLSS); the 
overall efficiency of the pumping system averaged 58%, with an average electrical cost of 
$426 per million gallons, or $139 per acre-foot. Total year-to-date O&M expenses were 
$413,489 or 18.8% of the overall O&M budget amount of $2,204,698 and the running 
average overall cost of operation was $751 per million gallons pumped or $245 per acre-
foot.   

 
2. OPERATIONS 

 
During this reporting period, no unusual operational activities occurred.  Monthly reports 
sent to EBDA which detail daily export flows and monitoring analysis of the treated 
effluent during the quarter are shown on Tables 9, 10, and 11.   
 

3. MAINTENANCE 
 
During the quarter, a total of 209 preventative maintenance (PM) work orders and 11 
corrective maintenance (CM) work orders were completed on LAVWMA equipment and 
systems.  No unusual maintenance activities occurred during this reporting period.  

 
4. CAPITAL OUTLAY 

 
Pump #6 was craned off and sent to be rebuilt at the end of August and was installed in 
late September with DSRSD Board Director Madelyne Misheloff in attendance.  Pump #6 
is now pending commissioning. 
 

       
Installation of pump #6 on 9/25/2018 
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5.  BUDGET VARIANCE AND EXPENSES 
 
First quarter labor expenses totaled $170,202 for 1,101 man‐hours of effort, an average 
of 2.1 full time equivalents (FTEs).  Labor expenses utilized 78.8% of the budgeted labor 
amount for the quarter.   

 
For the quarter, the total O&M expenses  including  labor, supplies,  laboratory analysis, 
contractual services, and utilities totaled $413,489, for an average cost of $751 per million 
gallons pumped, or $245 per acre‐foot.   
 
The total expense for the Livermore sole use pipeline for the quarter was $8,934, of which 
$8,323 was attributed to labor expenses and $611 to other expenses.   
 
Operation and maintenance (O&M) expenses and budget utilization details are shown on 
Tables 5, 6, 7, and 8. 
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TABLE 1 - Electric Usage, Efficiency and Costs
LAVWMA SYSTEM:  Fiscal Year 2018-2019, 1st Quarter

Total

Export

Billing Flow Energy Efficiency

Month kWh Peak Partial Peak Off Peak $ kWh Peak Partial Peak Off Peak $ Days kWh $/kWh $ MG kWh/MG $/MG $/AF %
--------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- ---------

Jul-18 129,401 0 39,387 90,014 $20,674 314,595 1,702 46,896 265,997 $50,289 30 443,996 $0.16 $70,963 157 2,819 $451 $147 49.3%
Aug-18 134,678 0 41,284 93,394 $21,238 287,141 2,120 19,805 265,216 $47,483 32 421,819 $0.16 $68,722 154 2,731 $445 $145 50.9%
Sep-18 182,953 0 35,298 147,655 $33,568 200,500 1,790 40,442 158,268 $44,204 30 383,453 $0.20 $77,772 203 1,886 $382 $125 73.7%
Oct-18

Nov-18

Dec-18

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

Apr-19

May-19

Jun-19
.  

Quarter
Average 149,011 $25,160 267,412 $47,325 31 416,423 $0.18 $72,485 172 2,479 $426 $139 58.0%

Total 447,032 $75,480 802,236 $141,976 92 1,249,268 $217,456 515 7,436 173.9%

Minimum 129,401 $20,674 200,500 $44,204 30 383,453 $0.16 $68,722 154 1,886 $382 $125 49.3%

Maximum 182,953 $33,568 314,595 $50,289 32 443,996 $0.20 $77,772 203 2,819 $451 $147 73.7%

YTD
Average 149,011 $25,160 267,412 $47,325 31 416,423 $0.18 $72,485 172 2,479 $426 $139 58.0%

Total 447,032 $75,480 802,236 $141,976 92 1,249,268 $217,456 515 7,436 173.9%

Minimum 129,401 $20,674 200,500 $44,204 30 383,453 $0.16 $68,722 154 1,886 $382 $125 49.3%

Maximum 182,953 $33,568 314,595 $50,289 32 443,996 $0.20 $77,772 203 2,819 $451 $147 73.7%

PG&E Service Accounts: Rate Schedule E20S

Total

PumpingAcct # 8482061923-1 Acct # 8440395259-5

Service A Service B Cost
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TABLE 2 - Pump Run Time Hours
LAVWMA SYSTEM:  Fiscal Year 2018-2019, 1st Quarter

Pump Pump Pump Pump Pump Pump Pump Pump Pump Pump Pump Pump

No. 1 No. 2 No. 3 No. 4 No. 5 No. 6 No. 7 No. 8 No. 9 No. 10 Run Utilization

Month Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours %
--------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- ---------

Jul-18 0 303 0 0 0 0 305 0 0 0 609 8.2%
Aug-18 0 167 0 210 0 0 164 213 9 30 793 10.7%
Sep-18 0 91 0 291 0 0 14 314 15 275 1,001 13.9%
Oct-18

Nov-18

Dec-18

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

Apr-19

May-19

Jun-19

Quarter
Average 0 187 0 167 0 0 161 176 8 102 801 10.9%

Total 0 562 0 501 0 0 484 527 24 305 2,402

Minimum 0 91 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 0 609 8.2%

Maximum 0 303 0 291 0 0 305 314 15 275 1,001 13.9%

YTD
Average 0 187 0 167 0 0 161 176 8 102 801 10.9%

Total 0 562 0 501 0 0 484 527 24 305 2,402

Minimum 0 91 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 0 609 8.2%

Maximum 0 303 0 291 0 0 305 314 15 275 1,001 13.9%

TOTAL
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Average Storage

Basin Basin Basin Volume Storage Basin

No. 1 No. 2 No. 3 Stored Available Utilization

Month Feet Feet Feet MG MG %
--------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- ---------

Jul-18 1.06 0.66 1.72 1.69 18 9.4%
Aug-18 2.75 0.17 3.30 3.05 18 16.9%
Sep-18 3.49 0.15 2.67 3.13 18 17.4%
Oct-18

Nov-18

Dec-18

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

Apr-19

May-19

Jun-19

Quarter
Average 2.43 0.33 2.56 2.62 14.6%

Minimum 1.06 0.15 1.72 1.69 9.4%

Maximum 3.49 0.66 3.30 3.13 17.4%

YTD
Average 2.43 0.33 2.56 2.62 14.6%

Minimum 1.06 0.15 1.72 1.69 9.4%

Maximum 3.49 0.66 3.30 3.13 17.4%

Note: Total available storage volume is 18 million gallons.

Average Daily Volume

TABLE 3 - Monthly Average Storage Basin Levels and Volume  
LAVWMA SYSTEM:  Fiscal Year 2018-2019, 1st Quarter
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TABLE 4 - Monthly Export Flow
LAVWMA SYSTEM:  Fiscal Year 2018-2019, 1st Quarter

Dublin San Ramon Pleasanton Livermore Combined Export

Flow * Flow * Flow Flow Total for

Month MG MG MG MG Quarter
----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------

Jul-18 0 76 82 158
Aug-18 0 93 88 181

Sep-18 17 114 93 223 562
Oct-18

Nov-18

Dec-18

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

Apr-19

May-19

Jun-19

Quarter
Total 17 282 263 562

Average 6 94 88 187

Minimum 0 76 82 158

Maximum 17 114 93 223

YTD
Total 17 282 263 562

Average 6 94 88 187

Minimum 0 76 82 158

Maximum 17 114 93 223

* Monthly totals do not include flows diverted for recycling use by DERWA and Pleasanton.
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TABLE 5 - Labor Effort, Expenditures, and Budget Utilization 
LAVWMA SYSTEM:  Fiscal Year 2018-2019, 1st Quarter
FY Labor Budget $864,466

Billed YTD Labor

Labor FTE Labor Labor Budget Budget

Month Hours Equiv Invoice Budget Utilization Remaining MG AF
--------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- ---------

Jul-18 477.5 2.8 $74,454 $72,039 103.4% $790,012 158 485
Aug-18 314.5 1.8 $49,073 $144,078 85.7% $740,939 181 556
Sep-18 309.3 1.8 $46,675 $216,117 78.8% $694,264 223 685
Oct-18 0

Nov-18 0

Dec-18 0

Jan-19 0

Feb-19 0

Mar-19 0

Apr-19 0

May-19 0

Jun-19 0

QUARTER
Total 1,101.3 $170,202 562 1,725

Average 367.1 2.1 $56,734 187 575

Minimum 309.3 1.8 $46,675 158 485

Maximum 477.5 2.8 $74,454 223 685

YTD
Total YTD 1,101.3 $170,202 19.7% $694,264 562 1,725

Average YTD 367.1 2.1 $56,734 47 575

Minimum 309.3 1.8 $46,675 0 485

Maximum 477.5 2.8 $74,454 223 685

Export

Flow
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TABLE 6 - O&M Expenditures and Budget Utilization 
LAVWMA SYSTEM:  Fiscal Year 2018-2019, 1st Quarter
Total O&M Budget: $2,204,698

Total YTD O&M

Labor A/P O&M O&M Budget Budget

Month Expenses Expenses Expenses Budget Utilization Remaining $/MG $/AF MG AF
--------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- ---------

Jul-18 $74,454 $54,197 $128,650 $183,724.83 70.0% $2,076,048 $815 $266 158 485

Aug-18 $49,073 $105,718 $154,791 $367,450 77.1% $1,921,256 $854 $278 181 556

Sep-18 $46,675 $83,372 $130,047 $551,175 75.0% $1,791,209 $583 $190 223 685

Oct-18

Nov-18

Dec-18

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

Apr-19

May-19

Jun-19

QUARTER
Total $170,202 $243,287 $413,489 562 1,725

Average $56,734 $81,096 $137,830 $751 $245 187 575

Minimum $46,675 $54,197 $128,650 $583 $190 158 485

Maximum $74,454 $105,718 $154,791 $854 $278 223 685

YTD
Total YTD $170,202 $243,287 $413,489 18.8% $1,791,209 562 1,725

Average YTD $56,734 $81,096 $137,830 $751 $245 187 575

Minimum $46,675 $54,197 $128,650 $583 $190 158 485

Maximum $74,454 $105,718 $154,791 $854 $278 223 685

Overall

O&M

Cost

Footnote:  PG&E statement for Feeder A for the period 11/13-12/12 was not received and processed for payment until 1/16/18; amount is $102,645 - this expense will show in Jan A/P recap (3rd quarter) 
but for the purpose of this report, this amount will be adjusted to December expenses so that it is accurately included in 2nd quarter report which it should be.

Export

Flow
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TABLE 7 - O&M Expenditures and Budget Utilization for Livermore Sole Use Facilities
LAVWMA SYSTEM:  Fiscal Year 2018-2019, 1st Quarter

Labor A/P Total

Month Expenses Expenses Expenses
--------- --------- --------- ---------

Jul-18 $1,485 $185 $1,670
Aug-18 $6,664 $186 $6,850
Sep-18 $174 $240 $414
Oct-18

Nov-18

Dec-18

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

Apr-19

May-19

Jun-19

Quarter
Total $8,323 $611 $8,934

Average $2,774 $204 $2,978

Minimum $174 $185 $414

Maximum $6,664 $240 $6,850

YTD
Total $8,323 $611 $8,934

Average $2,774 $204 $2,978

Minimum $174 $185 $414

Maximum $6,664 $240 $6,850

Livermore Sole Use Facilities
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LAVWMA  FY 2018-2019

Current FY Period: 3

July August September October November December January February March April May June YTD YTD
 FY 2018-2019 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 TOTAL Budget

Labor
Staff $864,466 $74,454 $49,073 $46,675 $170,202 $216,116

Subtotal $864,466 $74,454 $49,073 $46,675 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $170,202 $216,116

Materials & Supplies
Operations Supplies $14,200 $0 $15 $0 $15 $3,550
Mechanical Supplies $25,000 $819 $25 $252 $1,096 $6,250
Electrical Supplies $24,500 $0 $653 $0 $653 $6,125

Subtotal $63,700 $819 $693 $252 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,764 $15,925

Laboratory Analysis
Compliance Testing $18,000 $712 $890 $712 $2,314 $4,500
Operational Support Testing $3,700 $330 $330 $330 $990 $925
Special Sampling $5,000 $1,156 $1,445 $1,156 $3,757 $1,250

Subtotal $26,700 $2,198 $2,665 $2,198 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,061 $6,675

Contractual Services
Sub-surface Repairs $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,250
Street Sweeping $5,000 $0 $0 $550 $550 $1,250
Cathodic Protection $26,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,500
Underground Service Alert $1,140 $0 $3,782 $0 $3,782 $285
SCADA/PowerXpert software support $10,000 $0 $4,376 $0 $4,376 $2,500
Rectifier SCADA (5 yr contract) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
HVAC Maintenance/Repairs $750 $0 $405 $0 $405 $188
Termite/Pest Control $900 $0 $152 $0 $152 $225
Landscape/weed maintenance $8,500 $0 $1,960 $980 $2,941 $2,125
Janitorial Service $0 $0 $550 $275 $0
Fire Extinguisher Maint $200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50
Postage/Shipping Charges $250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $63
Professional Services, misc $10,000 $0 $866 $9 $874 $2,500

Subtotal $67,740 $0 $12,091 $1,814 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $13,905 $16,935

Utilities
Electricity (PG&E) $1,157,313 $50,790 $90,269 $78,360 $219,419 $289,328
Water & Sewer (Pleasanton) $1,000 $0 $0 $151 $151 $250
Water (EBMUD) $880 $0 $0 $173 $173 $220
Telephone/communications $4,500 $389 $0 $425 $814 $1,125
WW Treatment (DSRSD) $2,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $625

Subtotal $1,166,193 $51,179 $90,269 $79,108 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $220,557 $291,548

Non-Routine
Pump Efficiency Testing $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Corrosion Studies/ Inspections $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,250
Med Voltage Switchgear Tri-Annual PM $10,900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,725

Subtotal $15,900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,975

Total $2,204,698 $128,650 $154,792 $130,047 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $413,489 $551,175
75% of YTD Budget

Export Flow, mg 4,015               158 181 223 562 1,004           
Pumping Efficiency 49.3% 50.9% 73.7%
Monthly Cost, $/mg $815 $854 $583

YTD Running Cost, $/mg $549 $815 $836 $736

ACTUAL EXPENSES BILLED TO LAVWMA FOR REGULAR O&M

BUDGET COMPARISON TO ACTUAL EXPENSES

Approved Budget

TABLE 8
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Current FY Period: 1

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD YTD
 FY 2018-2019 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 TOTAL Budget

Estimated Personnel Hours

0 -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            
0 -              -              

52 -            -            16.50        -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            - 16.50 4.33          
Water/Wastewater Sys Lead Op 0 -              -              
Water/Wastewater Sys OP IV-On Call 0 -              -              
Water/Wastewater Sys OP IV 32 - 2.67 
Water/Wastewater Sys OP III 0 8.00            8.00            -              
Water/Wastewater Sys OP II 0 8.50            8.50            -              
Maintenance Worker II 16 -              -              -              -              -              -              -              1.33            
Supervisor 4 -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              0.33            

2,996 204.50      154.25      184.00      -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            - 542.75 249.67      
Process Lead Operator V 200 19.00          14.50          16.50          50.00          16.67          
Senior WWTP Operator III 590 55.50          43.50          34.00          133.00        49.17          
Operator II 1,000 50.00          61.00          52.00          163.00        83.33          
Operator II (SLSS) 1,156 62.00          26.00          74.00          96.33          
Supervisor 50 18.00          9.25            7.50            34.75          4.17            

1,612 170.00      125.25      89.25        -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            - 384.50 134.33      
Senior Mechanic-Crane Cert 380 37.00          45.25          26.00          108.25        31.67          
Senior Mechanic - USA 82 7.00            10.25          17.25          6.83            
Mechanic I/II 960 103.75        25.00          9.00            137.75        80.00          
Mechanic II-Crane Cert 0 14.50          40.50          38.00          93.00          -              
Mechanic II - USA 140 6.75            6.75            11.67          
Mechanic II-Crane Cert - USA 0 1.00            14.50          6.00            21.50          -              
Supervisor 50 - 4.17 

850 94.00        32.00        19.00        -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            - 145.00 70.83 
Senior Instrument/Controls Tech 8 2.00            2.00            0.67            
Instrument Tech 260 67.00          25.00          1.00            93.00          21.67          
OPS Control Sys Spec 250 2.00            5.00            7.00            20.83          
Senior Electrician 108 - 9.00 
Electrician 200 25.00          5.00            13.00          43.00          16.67 
Supervisor 24 -              -              -              2.00 

48 -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            - 4.00 
Safety Officer 48 -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              - 4.00 

100 9.00          3.00          0.50          -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            - 12.50 8.33 
Associate/Senior Civil Engineer-SME 100 9.00            3.00            0.50            12.50          8.33            

5,658

477.50      314.50      309.25      -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            - 1,101.25 471.50      

ACTUAL EXPENSES BILLED TO LAVWMA FOR REGULAR O&M

Division 54 - ELEC

Division 53 - MECH

Division 52 - WWTP

Division 51 - FOD

Division 40 - ENG

Total Estimated Personnel Hours

Total Monthly Hours

Division 50 - Ops Admin

Division 26 - SAFETY

TABLE 8
LAVWMA
BUDGET COMPARISON TO ACTUAL EXPENSES
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COLLECTION FECAL COLIFORM ENTEROCOCCUS

DATE MPN/100 mL MPN/100 mL

7/5/2018 22 < 10

7/12/2018 > 1600 < 10

7/19/2018 30 < 10

7/26/2018 50 < 10

8/2/2018 17 10

8/9/2018 23 10

8/16/2018 30 10

8/23/2018 30 < 10

8/30/2018 11 10

9/6/2018 70 < 10

9/13/2018 170 10

9/20/2018 30 < 10

9/27/2018 50 < 10

MEDIAN 30 10

GEOMEAN 46 10

MPN = Most Probable Number

Report for LAVWMA ‐ FY 2018‐2019, 1st Quarter 
Microbiological Results

Dublin San Ramon Services District Laboratory 
ELAP Certificate # 1272

TABLE 9
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CHLORINE

CHLORINE RESIDUAL

FLOW MINIMUM pH MAXIMUM pH RESIDUAL (SLS STATION)

DATE (MGD) (mg/L) (kg/d) (mg/L) (kg/d) (units) (units) (mg/L) (mg/L)

1 4.64 7.12 7.33 1.412 0.585

2 7.05 7.11 7.16 2.741 0.755

3 8.01 8.2 248 12.2 370 7.02 7.16 0.683 0.690

4 2.54 7.08 7.21 1.856 0.540

5 5.04 7.03 7.13 2.047 0.545

6 6.55 7.05 7.24 0.933 0.470

7 5.06 7.10 7.35 0.607 0.008

8 4.90 7.22 7.43 0.491 0.001

9 5.98 7.20 7.48 1.199 0.002

10 6.72 7.13 7.30 0.966 0.001

11 4.61 3.9 68 9.4 164 7.04 7.25 1.130 0.001

12 6.18 7.03 7.31 2.578 0.001

13 5.27 7.04 7.21 1.841 0.001

14 5.55 7.13 7.34 0.334 0.000

15 4.28 7.17 7.39 0.271 0.000

16 6.47 7.10 7.40 0.678 0.000

17 4.99 7.05 7.26 0.815 0.000

18 3.59 4.2 57 10.6 144 7.07 7.21 0.933 0.000

19 3.76 7.10 7.25 0.995 0.000

20 5.29 7.08 7.22 0.462 0.000

21 4.44 7.11 7.22 0.246 0.000

22 3.90 7.12 7.22 0.659 0.000

23 5.61 7.12 7.29 3.114 0.000

24 4.75 7.02 7.17 3.333 0.000

25 3.59 3.7 50 12.4 169 7.00 7.13 1.809 0.000

26 6.10 6.99 7.07 0.710 0.000

27 4.77 6.97 7.09 0.731 0.000

28 4.65 6.96 7.07 0.454 0.001

29 2.74 6.98 7.22 0.576 0.001

30 6.30 6.98 7.13 0.911 0.001

31 4.57 7.04 7.17 0.192 0.001

MAX. 8.01 8.20 248 12.4 370 7.22 7.48 3.33 0.76

MIN. 2.54 3.7 50 9.4 144 6.96 7.07 0.19 0.00

AVE. 5.09 5.0 106 11.2 212 7.07 7.24 1.15 0.12

TOTAL 157.88

Samples collected from LAVWMA Export Pump Station, except for chlorine at the San Leandro Sampling Station as noted. 

MGD = Millions of gallons per day; mg/L = milligrams per liter; kg/d = kilograms per day

Authorized for release by: Date:  10/19/2018

Diane Griffin, Laboratory Director

Monthly Report for LAVWMA ‐ July 2018

Dublin San Ramon Services District Laboratory

ELAP Certificate # 1272

CBOD TSS 

TABLE 10
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CHLORINE

CHLORINE RESIDUAL

FLOW MINIMUM pH MAXIMUM pH RESIDUAL (SLS STATION)

DATE (MGD) (mg/L) (kg/d) (mg/L) (kg/d) (units) (units) (mg/L) (mg/L)

1 2.23 3.6 30 9.8 83 7.01 7.25 1.172 0.001

2 5.14 7.07 7.29 0.516 0.001

3 4.53 7.10 7.40 0.201 0.001

4 4.79 7.18 7.34 0.096 0.001

5 4.65 7.13 7.32 0.076 0.001

6 6.43 7.03 7.16 0.225 0.001

7 7.23 7.00 7.11 0.238 0.001

8 2.22 2.8 24 5.8 49 7.05 7.10 0.672 0.001

9 4.84 7.04 7.10 0.223 0.001

10 4.89 7.03 7.12 O/S 0.001

11 4.86 7.03 7.26 O/S 0.001

12 4.38 7.22 7.31 O/S 0.001

13 7.67 7.11 7.28 O/S 0.001

14 8.03 7.16 7.36 O/S 0.001

15 5.26 4.5 90 10.4 207 7.08 7.25 O/S 0.001

16 4.68 7.10 7.29 0.300 0.001

17 7.25 7.07 7.19 0.032 0.005

18 7.40 7.12 7.36 1.920 0.015

19 6.30 7.03 7.22 2.466 0.009

20 7.48 7.02 7.38 2.530 0.007

21 7.18 6.98 7.19 2.379 0.013

22 4.69 2.9 51 7.2 128 6.96 7.10 2.789 0.006

23 6.20 6.94 7.07 2.553 0.004

24 6.64 6.95 7.08 3.468 0.004

25 6.60 6.95 7.24 0.775 0.006

26 4.20 7.11 7.29 3.075 0.006

27 7.53 7.02 7.18 2.577 0.007

28 8.03 7.09 7.37 3.935 0.004

29 6.38 4.1 99 10.8 261 7.10 7.16 2.656 0.001

30 6.08 7.01 7.14 2.811 0.006

31 7.46 7.01 7.10 1.573 0.002

MAX. 8.03 4.50 99 10.8 261 7.22 7.40 3.94 0.02

MIN. 2.22 2.8 24 5.8 49 6.94 7.07 0.03 0.00

AVE. 5.85 3.6 59 8.8 145 7.05 7.23 1.57 0.00

TOTAL 181.22

Samples collected from LAVWMA Export Pump Station, except for chlorine at the San Leandro Sampling Station as noted. 

MGD = Millions of gallons per day; mg/L = milligrams per liter; kg/d = kilograms per day; O/S = Out of Service

Authorized for release by: Date:  10/19/2018

Diane Griffin, Laboratory Director

Monthly Report for LAVWMA ‐ August 2018

Dublin San Ramon Services District Laboratory

ELAP Certificate # 1272

CBOD TSS 

TABLE  10
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CHLORINE

CHLORINE RESIDUAL

FLOW MINIMUM pH MAXIMUM pH RESIDUAL (SLS STATION)

DATE (MGD) (mg/L) (kg/d) (mg/L) (kg/d) (units) (units) (mg/L) (mg/L)

1 7.43 7.09 7.27 0.524 0.000

2 6.52 7.07 7.27 0.355 0.000

3 6.06 7.02 7.13 0.450 0.004

4 7.39 7.02 7.28 0.256 0.004

5 3.20 4.1 50 6.8 82 7.11 7.28 1.146 0.002

6 6.25 7.14 7.29 2.058 0.008

7 9.27 7.02 7.14 2.470 0.503

8 8.55 7.10 7.39 3.140 1.193

9 8.08 7.16 7.36 1.840 1.444

10 8.10 7.12 7.38 1.547 1.149

11 9.69 7.19 7.40 1.244 0.738

12 5.45 2.6 54 6.2 128 7.07 7.21 1.877 0.512

13 7.42 7.04 7.35 0.659 0.553

14 8.95 7.02 7.17 0.832 0.593

15 8.27 7.12 7.40 0.546 0.663

16 6.36 7.17 7.33 0.635 0.741

17 7.89 7.09 7.23 0.788 0.698

18 9.97 7.04 7.21 1.482 1.159

19 6.09 3.9 90 10.6 244 6.96 7.12 3.580 1.474

20 9.05 6.98 7.16 2.681 0.928

21 8.43 6.98 7.17 0.549 0.923

22 9.05 7.00 7.15 0.166 0.619

23 6.33 7.02 7.15 0.273 0.342

24 8.34 7.00 7.09 0.349 0.342

25 8.68 6.96 7.09 0.470 0.285

26 6.95 3.4 89 8.8 231 7.00 7.12 0.490 0.154

27 6.43 6.97 7.11 0.244 0.075

28 7.01 6.98 7.08 0.307 0.071

29 6.77 7.02 7.13 0.206 0.075

30 5.07 7.02 7.07 0.185 0.073

MAX. 9.97 4.1 90 10.6 244 7.19 7.40 3.580 1.474

MIN. 3.20 2.6 50 6.2 82 6.96 7.07 0.166 0.000

AVE. 7.43 3.5 71 8.1 171 7.05 7.22 1.045 0.511

TOTAL 223.05

Samples collected from LAVWMA Export Pump Station, except for chlorine at the San Leandro Sampling Station as noted. 

MGD = Millions of gallons per day; mg/L = milligrams per liter; kg/d = kilograms per day

Authorized for release by: Date:  10/19/2018

Diane Griffin, Laboratory Director

CBOD TSS 

Monthly Report for LAVWMA ‐ September 2018 
Dublin San Ramon Services District Laboratory 

ELAP Certificate # 1272

TABLE 10
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Collection TDS Temp Ca Hardness Alkalinity pH pH Langlier
DATE (mg/L) (ºC) (mg/L CaCO3) (mg/L CaCO3) (Actual) Saturation Index

07/12/18 703 26.1 110 312 7.3 7.3 0.0
08/30/18 626 25.5 90 294 7.3 7.4 -0.1
09/18/18 734 25.5 120 288 6.8 7.3 -0.5

MAXIMUM 734 26.1 120 312 7.3 7.4 0.0

MINIMUM 626 25.5 90 288 6.8 7.3 -0.5

AVERAGE 688 25.7 107 298 7.1 7.3 -0.2

     DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT
        WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY

LAVWMA

Langelier pH Saturation Index

TABLE 11
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Collection TDS Temp Ca Hardness Alkalinity pH pH Langlier
DATE (mg/L) (ºC) (mg/L CaCO3) (mg/L CaCO3) (Actual) Saturation Index

07/12/18 691 26.0 118 322 7.4 7.2 0.2
08/30/18 655 26.2 106 310 7.4 7.3 0.1
09/18/18 880 25.3 140 347 7.1 7.2 -0.1

MAXIMUM 880 26.2 140 347 7.4 7.3 0.2

MINIMUM 655 25.3 106 310 7.1 7.2 -0.1

AVERAGE 742 25.8 121 326 7.3 7.2 0.1

     DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT
        WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY

DSRSD

Langelier pH Saturation Index

TABLE 11
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Collection TDS Temp Ca Hardness Alkalinity pH pH Langlier
DATE (mg/L) (ºC) (mg/L CaCO3) (mg/L CaCO3) (Actual) Saturation Index

07/11/18 610 26.0 76 321 7.6 7.5 0.1
08/01/18 520 25.0 54 275 7.6 7.7 0.0
09/05/18 610 27.0 64 284 7.6 7.6 0.0

MAXIMUM 610 27.0 76 321 7.6 7.7 0.1

MINIMUM 520 25.0 54 275 7.6 7.5 0.0

AVERAGE 580 26.0 65 293 7.6 7.6 0.0

LIVERMORE WATER RECLAMATION PLANT

Both pH Saturation Indices

CITY OF LIVERMORETABLE 11
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TABLE 12 – LAVWMA Routine and Emergency Contact Information 

 

Agency  Contact  Office 

DSRSD  Sue Stephenson, Community Affairs Supervisor  (925) 875‐2295 

LAVWMA  Chuck Weir, General Manager  (925) 875‐2233 

 
The routine, non‐emergency contact information is as follows: 

Agency  Contact  Office 

DSRSD  WWTP Main Office/Control Room Office  (925) 846‐4565 

DSRSD  Bill Smith, Senior Mechanic  (925) 875‐2371 

DSRSD  Shawn Quinlan, Mechanical Maintenance Supervisor  (925) 875‐2358 

DSRSD  Levi Fuller, WWTP Operations Supervisor  (925) 875‐2300 

DSRSD  Jeff Carson, Operations Manager  (925) 875‐2345 

DSRSD  Fax Machine  (925) 462‐0658 

 
 
The after‐hours and emergency contact information is as follows: 

Agency  Contact  Cell 

DSRSD  24 Hour On Duty Operator  (925) 519‐0557 

DSRSD  Operator II On Duty  (925) 872‐5887 

DSRSD  Bill Smith, Senior Mechanic  (925) 570‐4161 

DSRSD  Shawn Quinlan, Mechanical Maintenance Supervisor  (925) 570‐7878 

DSRSD  Levi Fuller, WWTP Operations Supervisor  (925) 570‐8775 

DSRSD  Jeff Carson, Operations Manager  (925) 719‐2997 

 
The City of Livermore emergency contact information is as follows: 

Agency  Contact  Cell 

Livermore  24 Hour On Duty Operator  (925) 960‐8160 

Livermore  Darren Greenwood, Director of Public Works  (925) 525‐4844 

Livermore  Jimmie Truesdell, Water Resources Operations  
Manager 

(925) 525‐2016 

 
The City of Pleasanton emergency contact information is as follows: 

Agency  Contact  Cell 

Pleasanton  24 Hour On Call Operator  (925) 437‐3992 

Pleasanton  Eric Amaro, Chief Utilities System Operator  (925) 437‐3605 
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Page 1 Agenda Explanation 
Livermore-Amador Valley  
 Water Management Agency 
Board of Directors 
November 21, 2018 
 

ITEM NO. 10 APPROVAL OF CITY OF PLEASANTON REQUEST FOR 
RETROACTIVE APPROVAL FOR EXTENSION OF WASTEWATER SERVICE TO 
PROPERTIES LOCATED IN UNINCORPORATED HAPPY VALLEY AND REMEN 
TRACT DURING THE PERIOD 1993 TO 2014 AND PREAPPROVAL OF UP TO TEN 
(10) ADDITIONAL EXTENSIONS EACH IN HAPPY VALLEY AND REMEN TRACT, 
SUBJECT TO LAFCO APPROVAL AND A FOUR-YEAR SUNSET LIMITATION, 
PURSUANT TO LAVWMA ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY NO. 2017-01 REGARDING 
UNINCORPORATED AREA SERVICE EXTENSIONS 
 
Action Requested 
It is requested that the Board approve City of Pleasanton’s request for retroactive approval for 
extension of wastewater service to properties located in unincorporated Happy Valley and 
Remen Tract during the period 1993 to 2014 and preapproval of up to ten (10) additional 
extensions each in Happy Valley and Remen Tract, subject to LAFCO approval and a four-year 
sunset limitation, pursuant to LAVWMA Administrative Policy No. 2017-01 Regarding 
Unincorporated Area Service Extensions. 
 
Summary 
The subject of member agencies providing wastewater service to unincorporated areas has come 
up a few times in the last few years. The Board reviewed a LAFCO item from July 14, 2016 at 
its August 15, 2016 meeting, involving LAFCO’s retroactive approval of extensions outside city 
boundaries pursuant to Government Code § 56133. The Board’s discussion at that time led to the 
development and approval of Administrative Policy No. 2017-01 Regarding Unincorporated 
Area Service Extensions (Policy). That Policy was approved March 29, 2017 and is included as 
Item No. 10.1. The aforementioned LAFCO report is included as Item No. 10.2.  
 
The purpose of the Policy is to provide procedural and interpretive guidance on the application 
of Sections 14.1 and 14.2 of LAVWMA’s Joint Powers Agreement. Section 14.2 is specific to 
“Service to Unincorporated Areas” and requires unanimous approval of the LAVWMA Board if 
the proposed service connections in any one contiguous unincorporated area exceeds ten 
residential connections or the equivalent. As described in this report and the attachments, City of 
Pleasanton is requesting retroactive approval for more than ten connections each in Happy 
Valley and Remen Tract, all of which have been retroactively approved by LAFCO. The Policy 
concludes that the Board may preapprove future connections that could be served by the existing 
or proposed infrastructure in order to reduce the need for multiple applications for LAVWMA 
approval and provide for more efficiency and certainty in the planning process. The Policy 
further provides that any such preapproval may be limited by a sunset clause that specifies that 
preapproval of the unincorporated area services connections will expire on a specific date. 
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Item No. 10.3 is a spreadsheet that lists all City of Pleasanton sewer service connections in the 
unincorporated Happy Valley and Remen Tract. LAFCO approval is only for connections made 
after January 1, 2001. Those connections are highlighted in green in the spreadsheet. There were 
some connections prior to that date, which are not highlighted. The spreadsheet includes all 
connections outside the City boundaries and lists the date each of the connections were made. 
There are some properties that were connected prior to 1993 that precede the LAVWMA Joint 
Powers Agreement and are not included in this request. They are included in the spreadsheet so 
that the list will be complete.  
 
On the list you’ll see there are 16 properties in Happy Valley that have sewer connections. 
Eleven of those 16 properties were in the LAFCO approval and are highlighted in green. Five of 
the 16, not highlighted, had sewer connection prior to January 1, 2001 so were not part of the 
LAFCO retroactive approval. Also notice two of the 11 properties in the retroactive approval 
have now completed the annexation process into the City of Pleasanton as stated in the notes. In 
summary there are now 14 sewer connections outside the City boundaries in Happy Valley. 
 
Also on the list are 30 properties in Remen Tract that have rights to City sewer service. The 15 
properties in green connected after January 1, 2001 and were included in the LAFCO retroactive 
approval. There are also three properties highlighted in blue that were in the LAFCO retroactive 
approval but are currently undeveloped. Each of the three has a public sewer lateral stubbed to 
the property line but are not connected to service. If they develop, the three have LAFCO 
approval to connect. The spreadsheet also lists the 12 properties, not highlighted, in Remen Tract 
that had connections prior to January 1, 2001. To summarize there are currently 27 sewer 
connections in Remen Tract. 
 
The total number of sewer connections in both areas during the period 1993-2014 is 41 (14 + 
27), which averages slightly less than two per year.  
 
Also included as Item No. 10.4 are maps to show this information graphically. Please note that 
Remen Tract is an unincorporated island that is completely within the City limits. As can be seen 
in the maps there are a number of properties that are either not developed or not connected to the 
City’s sewer system. Many are on septic tanks, and as those systems fail, it is likely that the 
County and Regional Water Board will require them to connect to the sewer system.  
 
There are 38 properties in Happy Valley that could request a connection to the existing public 
sewer pipeline in Sycamore Road and Alisal Road. These 38 properties are in the unincorporated 
County of Alameda area of Happy Valley and have street frontage on these two streets that 
contain the sewer infrastructure that serves the Callippe Golf Course. Connections would be 
relatively easy for these 38 properties. There are also approximately 70 other properties in Happy 
Valley that could one day request sewer services, but providing service would require the 
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construction of extensions to the public sewer mains, which would be complicated and 
expensive. If a collection system is constructed that could serve those properties in the future, 
applications for out of area connections would need to come before both LAFCO and 
LAVWMA for approval. 
 
In Remen Tract there are 18 properties in total that do not have sewer connections. All 18 could 
request connections that would be relatively easy to connect to existing public sewer mains in the 
area. 
 
General Counsel and the General Manager have discussed the retroactive approval of the City’s 
connections which were already approved by LAFCO. Approval would be consistent with the 
Policy and is recommended.  
 
With respect to preapproval of future connections in conformance with the Policy, General 
Counsel and the General Manager have reviewed the number of potential new connections in the 
two unincorporated areas, as well as the time frame for future connections in question at this 
time. They have concluded that preapproval of up to ten additional service extensions each in 
Happy Valley and Remen Tract, subject to prior LAFCO approval, and limited by a four-year 
sunset limitation would be consistent with the Policy and its stated objectives. Four years 
coincides with general election cycles, such that a decision made by the current Board would not 
unnecessarily tie the hands of any future Board. City of Pleasanton staff are also comfortable 
with this approach. The preapprovals would be available on a first-come, first-served basis, and 
any unused preapproval for either of the areas would expire at the end of the four-year period 
and would not be transferable to the other area. Any future applications in addition to the 
preapproved connections, would be subject to Board approval as specified in the Policy if they 
cumulatively exceed ten residential connections or the equivalent. 
 
Recommendation 
It is recommended the Board approve Resolution 18-03 approving City of Pleasanton’s request for 
retroactive approval for extension of wastewater service to properties located in unincorporated 
Happy Valley and Remen Tract during the period 1993 to 2014 and preapproval of up to ten (10) 
additional extensions each in Happy Valley and Remen Tract, subject to LAFCO approval and a 
four-year sunset limitation, pursuant to LAVWMA Administrative Policy No. 2017-01 Regarding 
Unincorporated Area Service Extensions.  
 
Attachments 

1. Administrative Policy No. 2017-01 Regarding Unincorporated Area Service Extensions 
2. LAFCO July 14, 2016 Agenda Item 
3. List of Properties in Happy Valley and Remen Tract with Sewer Connections. 
4. Maps of Sewer Connections in Happy Valley and Remen Tract.  
5. Resolution 18-03. 

Item No. 10

70 of 146



1 
 

LAVWMA ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY NO. 2017-01 

REGARDING UNINCORPORATED AREA SERVICE EXTENSIONS 

 

I. Applicability 

This policy provides procedural and interpretive guidance on the application of the following 
portion of the Livermore Amador Valley Water Management Agency’s (“LAVWMA”) 
Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (“Agreement”):  

“14.1  Service to Incorporated Areas. Livermore, Pleasanton and DSRSD may provide 
wastewater service, including collection, conveyance, treatment and disposal of 
raw wastewater, from only those areas which now or in the future are 
incorporated within the city limits of Livermore, Pleasanton, and Dublin 
respectively. DSRSD may provide such service to the area within the city limits 
of San Ramon that DSRSD serves as of the date of this Agreement and any area 
within the specific plan for West-side San Ramon dated November 1989 that is 
subsequently incorporated into the City of San Ramon, and Livermore may 
continue to provide such service to the Ruby Hill Subdivision in the City of 
Pleasanton. 

“14.2 Service to Unincorporated Areas. In addition to providing service to the 
incorporated areas described in paragraph 14.1, Member Agencies may also 
provide service as follows: 

“14.2.4  In the interest of protecting public health and safety, a Member 
Agency may also provide wastewater treatment and disposal service to 
unincorporated properties adjoining a city. If the cumulative amount of 
proposed service in any one contiguous unincorporated geographic area 
exceeds ten (10) residential connections or the equivalent, service in 
excess of ten connections will require unanimous approval of the 
LAVWMA Board.” 

II. Issue  

Does Section 14.2.4 (the “Adjacent Service Clause”), which requires unanimous Board 
approval for a Member Agency to provide wastewater service more than 10 residential 
connections in any particular contiguous unincorporated area, apply when wastewater 
connections are made in one area over a multi-year period that cumulatively exceed 10 
residential connections, but individually do not?  

III. Interpretation  

Yes. Using a broad interpretation of the Adjacent Services Clause, unanimous LAVWMA 
approval is triggered anytime a contiguous unincorporated area has or would have more than 10 
connections and additional connections are requested, even if 10 or less individual connections 
are being proposed at the time. This interpretation is the most consistent with the overarching 
intent of the Agreement, which is to limit service outside of the Member Agency’s boundaries.  
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When the Board is considering an adjacent service application, it may pre-approve future 
connections that could be served by the existing or proposed infrastructure. Doing so could 
reduce the need for multiple applications for LAVWMA approval and provide for more 
efficiency and certainty in the planning process. To that end, the Board may approve the 
immediately requested new service connection(s) to a particular contiguous unincorporated area 
and may also specify the number of other future connections that are authorized to use that same 
infrastructure before additional LAVWMA approval must be sought. This approval could be 
limited by a sunset clause that specifies that preapproval of the unincorporated area service 
connections expires on a specified date.  

IV. Conclusion  

This Administrative Policy specifies how the Adjacent Service Clause should be interpreted and 
applied to avoid possible unregulated piecemealing of service extensions while also providing 
efficiency for subsequent extensions.  

** END OF POLICY ** 
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List of Properties  in Happy Valley and Remen Tract with Sewer Connections
Green = Approved by LAFCO; Blue = Approved by LAFCO, but not yet developed
Happy Valley
Item No. Situs No. Situs Street Name Date of Connection Notes

1 6034 Alisal St. 12/01/09

2 6352 Alisal St. 01/01/07 Annexed in 2015.

3 6360 Alisal St. 07/17/13 Annexed in 2015.

4 6511 Alisal St. 07/01/10

5 6651 Alisal St. 09/01/07

6 6140 Amber Lane 06/01/97

7 6152 Amber Lane 06/01/98

8 582 Happy Valley Road 12/01/04

9 585 Happy Valley Road 10/01/98

10 1070 Happy Valley Road 05/01/13

11 728 Mockingbird Lane 05/01/97

12 744 Mockingbird Lane 01/01/84

13 760 Mockingbird Lane 01/01/04

14 999 East Mockingbird Lane 06/01/12

15 849 Sycamore Road 04/06/06

16 969 Sycamore Road 07/01/06

Remen Tract
Item No. Situs No. Situs Street Name Date of Connection Notes

1 3429 Bernal Avenue 11/01/95

2 3437 Bernal Avenue 10/01/97

3 3445 Bernal Avenue 07/01/97

4 3465 Bernal Avenue 01/01/06

5 3469 Bernal Avenue 10/01/05

6 3477 Bernal Avenue 01/01/93

7 3485 Bernal Avenue 01/01/02

8 327 Linden Way 01/01/80

9 332 Linden Way 09/01/12

10 368 Linden Way 01/01/14

11 373 Linden Way 01/01/13

12 415 Linden Way 06/01/04

13 430 Linden Way 01/01/06

14 APN 946-170401303 Vine Street 7/6/2017*
No street address. *Date of LAFCo 
approval; no physical connection.

15 3480 Vine Street 01/01/09

16 3500 Vine Street 7/6/2017*
*Date of LAFCo approval; no physical 
connection.

17 3527 Vine Street 01/01/07

18 3545 Vine Street 01/01/02

19 3548 Vine Street 01/01/06

20 3552 Vine Street 01/01/06

21 APN 946-170800302 Vine Street 7/6/2017*
No street address. *Date of LAFCo 
approval; no physical connection.

22 3568 Vine Street 02/01/09

23 3626 Vine Street 01/01/73

24 3631 Vine Street 07/01/93

25 3573 Vineyard Avenue 07/01/93

26 3627 Vineyard Avenue 06/01/98

27 351 Virginia Way 02/01/98

28 366 Virginia Way 08/27/76

29 411 Virginia Way 01/01/11

30 425 Virginia Way 01/01/98
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LEGEND
STREET ADDRESS

PRYOR CURRENT PROPERTY OWNER

946-170800500 ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER

S: 1-1-99 PRE-JAN 1, 2001 - DATE OF CONNECTION

S: 9-1-12 POST-JAN 1, 2001 - DATE OF CONNECTION

CITY LIMIT

LOT LINE

APN 946-170801800 LOCATED ON LINDEN WAY & OWNED
BY WORTHLEY

APN 946-171000201 LOCATED ON BERNAL AVE & OWNED BY  
CITY OF PLEASANTON

 

3548

HAPPY 
VALLEY

SANITARY SEWER
EXHIBIT
NOT TO SCALE

582
949 000800303
LARSON
S: 12-1-04

6034 949 001500108
DAGGETT
S: 12-1-09

999 949 000700314
PELLOWSKI
S: 6-1-12

6352
949 001500502
MARKS
S: 10-4-07

6360
949 001500501
MIX S: 7-17-13

6511
949 000700500
FEY S: 7-1-10

6651 949 000700800
KESSELRING 
S: 9-1-07

1070 949 000701001
SMITH
S: 5-1-13

NORTH

ALAMEDA COUNTY C
ITY O

F PLEASAN
TO

N

6140 949 000600403
JACKSON
S: 6/1/97

6152 949 000600300
MAAS
S: 6/1/98

585 949 001100102
GAIERO
S: 10-1-98

728 949 000600105
BREDLAU
S: 5/1/97

969 949 000700108
YAO 
S: 7-1-06
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LEGEND
STREET ADDRESS

PRYOR CURRENT PROPERTY OWNER

946-170800500 ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER

S: 1-1-99 PRE-JAN 1, 2001 - DATE OF CONNECTION

S: 9-1-12 POST-JAN 1, 2001 - DATE OF CONNECTION

S: 1-1-11 LAFCO APPROVAL - NO PHYSICAL CONNECTION

CITY LIMIT

LOT LINE

APN 946-170801800 LOCATED ON LINDEN WAY & OWNED
BY WORTHLEY

APN 946-171000201 LOCATED ON BERNAL AVE & OWNED BY  
CITY OF PLEASANTON

 

332
946-170600600
FABER
S: 9-1-12

368
946-170600900
EAGEN
S: 1-1-14

373
946-170401500
NEVES
S: 1-1-13

411 
946-170600700
HEMPY
S: 1-1-11

3548
NO STREET ADDRESS
946 170600100
PRYOR

NO STREET ADDRESS
946 171000900
PRYOR

NO STREET ADDRESS
EMOA FAMILY TRUST
946 170401002

364
946-170601000
SHANG

351
946-170600800
HFD Partnership
S: 2-1-98

425
946-170600207
McLAUGHLIN
S: 1-1-98

3631
946-170401100
TRUTNER
S: 7-1-93

366 946-171000700
GEORGIS
S: 1-1-76

3545
946-171000601
JACQUES
S: 3-29-02

3429 946-1710002021
FLANDERS
S: 11-1-95

3437 
946-171000300
ARCHULETA
S: 10-1-97

NO STREET ADDRESS
946-171000602
GEORGIS

REMEN TRACT
SANITARY SEWER

EXHIBIT
NOT TO SCALE

Prepared November 1, 2018

PCL 3-PM 8606
946-170401303
SHAW S: 7-6-17

946-170401400
PROMAX INVESTMENT 385 LLC

385

36
89

 94
6-

17
04

01
20

3
T

H
O

M
A

S
 &

 P
IO

K
Z

A
N

O
N

NO STREET ADDRESS
946-171000201
CITY OF PLEASANTON
NO AGR

NO STREET ADDRESS
946-170801800
WORTHLEY

327
946 170400101
JOHNSON
S: 1-1-80

R   E   M E   N      T   R   A   C   T

NORTH

354 946-171000800
SANDOVAL

348
946-170600501
WILTZ

3644
946-
170400806
NEILSSON

3626
946-
170400807
MESSA
S: 1-1-73

3608
946-
170400808
GRAHAM

415
946-170400300
TAYLOR
S: 6-1-04

3627
946-
170400600
BAIRD
S: 6-1-98

3557
946-170801700
WATANABE 
(CHONG)

3573
946-170801400
EDWARDS
S: 7-1-93

3581
946-170801501
MEDINA

452
946-170801607
DILLARD

430
WRIGHT
946-170800101
S: 1-1-06 3568

946-
170800201
ROBERTSON
S: 2-1-09

3477946-170800901

SHAFFER S: 1-1-93

3533
946-170801100
DISSELS
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LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-03 

APPROVAL OF CITY OF PLEASANTON REQUEST FOR RETROACTIVE 

APPROVAL FOR EXTENSION OF WASTEWATER SERVICE TO PROPERTIES 

LOCATED IN UNINCORPORATED HAPPY VALLEY AND REMEN TRACT DURING 

THE PERIOD 1993 TO 2014 AND PREAPPROVAL OF UP TO TEN (10) ADDITIONAL 

EXTENSIONS EACH IN HAPPY VALLEY AND REMEN TRACT, SUBJECT TO 

LAFCO APPROVAL AND A FOUR-YEAR SUNSET LIMITATION, PURSUANT TO 

LAVWMA ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY NO. 2017-01 REGARDING 

UNINCORPORATED AREA SERVICE EXTENSIONS 

WHEREAS, the Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency (LAVWMA) is 
a joint powers agency formed pursuant to the Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers 
Agreement for the Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency dated July 21, 1997 
(JPA); and 

WHEREAS, Section 14.2, Service to Unincorporated Areas, of the JPA, requires 
unanimous approval of the LAVWMA Board if cumulative proposed service in any one 
contiguous unincorporated area exceeds ten residential connections or the equivalent; and 

WHEREAS, Administrative Policy No. 2017-01 Regarding Unincorporated Area Service 
Extensions (Policy) provides procedural and interpretive guidance on the application of Section 
14.2 of the JPA; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pleasanton (City) is requesting retroactive LAVWMA Board 
approval for more than ten connections each in two separate contiguous unincorporated areas 
known as, respectively, Happy Valley and Remen Tract; and 

WHEREAS, consistent with the Policy, the Board may concurrently preapprove future 
connections that could be served by the existing or proposed infrastructure to reduce the need for 
multiple applications for LAVWMA approval and to provide more efficiency and certainty in the 
planning process; and 

WHEREAS, during the period 1993-2014, the City provided wastewater connection 
service to 14 properties in Happy Valley and 24 properties in Remen Tract; and 

WHEREAS, in 2016, the Alameda County Local Agency Formation Commission 
(LAFCO) required City to apply for and request retroactive approval for out-of-area service 
agreements during the period 2001-2014 for 13 properties in Happy Valley and 10 in Remen Tract; 
and  

WHEREAS, on July 16, 2016, pursuant to Government Code § 56133, the LAFCO Board 
approved and adopted a resolution to provide Retroactive Approval of Out-of-Area Service 
Agreements for the Provision of Sewer and Water Services to Properties Located in the 
Unincorporated Happy Valley, Remen Tract, and West of Foothill/Sunol Areas; and 
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WHEREAS, City’s request for retroactive and preapproval of service connections in 

Happy Valley and Remen Tract has been reviewed by General Counsel and the Staff Advisory 
Group; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board met at a duly noticed public meeting on November 21, 2018 to 

receive a presentation from staff, as well as comments from City of Livermore staff and the 
applicant, and consider the matter;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Livermore-Amador 
Valley Water Management Agency hereby resolves as follows:  
 

1. The request for retroactive approval of 14 sewer service connections in unincorporated 
Happy Valley and 27 sewer service connections in unincorporated Remen Tract during the 
period 1993-2014 is hereby approved. 

2. Up to ten sewer service connections each in unincorporated Happy Valley and Remen 
Tract, are hereby preapproved subject to (a) prior approval of those connections by 
LAFCO; (b) the preapprovals may not be transferred from one unincorporated area to the 
other; (c) the preapproval will be applied to new service connections within those 
unincorporated areas on a first-come, first-served basis; and (d) any unused preapproved 
connections will expire within four years from the adoption of this Resolution.  

 
DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by LAVWMA this 21st day of November 2018, by the 
following unanimous vote:  
 
AYES: 
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
 
LIVERMORE-AMADOR VALLEY WATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
 
 
By: _____________________________         
 Jerry Pentin, Chair 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
By: _____________________________         
 Charles V. Weir, General Manager 
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ITEM NO. 11 APPROVAL OF MODIFICATION TO DSRSD/LAVWMA POTENTIAL 
STORAGE NEEDS DUE TO A 10-YEAR WET WEATHER EVENT 
 
Action Requested 
Approve a modification to the DSRSD/LAVWMA potential storage needs due to a 10-year wet 
weather event.  
 
Summary 
In October 2013 the LAVWMA Board reviewed the need for emergency storage to meet the 
LAVWMA NPDES permit requirements. At that time, an analysis indicated that DSRSD and 
Pleasanton collectively would need seven million gallons of storage at buildout of their service 
areas. The Board requested that the need for projected storage be reviewed every five years 
concurrently with LAVWMA's NPDES permit renewal process and as part of any wastewater 
treatment capacity expansion project of LAVWMA's member agencies. This review is consistent 
with the direction of the Board in 2013 regarding review of projected storage every five years.  
 
Since 2013, DSRSD has completed a Wastewater Treatment Plant Masterplan which estimates 
build-out average dry weather flows will be 12.3 million gallons per day (mgd), considerably 
less than the 18.2 mgd that was estimated in previous Master Plans and LAVWMA Wet Weather 
Storage analyses. DSRSD had Carollo Engineers (Carollo) review the storage requirement with 
the updated build-out flows. Carollo has indicated that the storage noted in 2013 will not be 
needed. A memorandum from Carollo along with additional background material from 2013 and 
the NPDES permit are attached. The Carollo Report states: “Now that DSRSD’s ADWF estimate 
for 2035 is 12.3 mgd, additional storage for the 10-year event is essentially not needed anytime 
in the future.” 
 
Based on the conclusions in the Carollo Report, it is recommended that the Board approve the 
modification of the 2013 recommendation for projected storage from a collective need for seven 
million gallons (at buildout of DSRSD and Pleasanton service areas), to the new conclusion that 
no additional storage for a 10-year event will be needed in the foreseeable future. 
 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the Board approve the modification to the DSRSD/LAVWMA potential 
storage needs due to a 10-year wet weather event.  
 
Attachments 

1. Carollo Engineers September 19, 2018 Project Memorandum, DSRSD/LAVWMA 
Storage Evaluation. 

2. LAVWMA staff report from the October 16, 2013 Board Meeting. 
3. West Yost Associates September 2017 Projected 2035 Flows and Loads. 
4. Applicable pages from the NPDES Permit, Order No. R2-2016-0015. 
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PROJECT MEMORANDUM 

DSRSD/LAVWMA STORAGE 
EVALUATION 
Dublin San Ramon Service District 

Prepared By: Shawn Dent 

Reviewed By: Paul Friedlander 

Subject: Evaluation of potential additional storage needed based on changes in DSRSD’s 
projected dry weather flows. 

Distribution: Judy Zavadil (DSRSD), Chuck Weir (LAVWMA) 

The purpose of this technical memorandum is to examine and document the effect of changes in Dublin San 
Ramon Services District (DSRSD) flow estimates for 2035 on the potential storage needs due to the 10-year 
wet weather event. This document was requested of Carollo Engineers, Inc. by DSRSD. This analysis updates 
the results documented in a previous letter report completed by Carollo for LAVWMA dated August 31, 
2013. 

LAVWMA’s current permit limits controlled bypasses to the Alamo canal to approximately once every 10 
years at a maximum discharge rate of 55 mgd.  For more frequent wet weather events, LAVWMA and its 
member agencies must store flows in excess of its allowed discharge to EBDA and San Lorenzo Creek. Past 
estimates of future storage needs have been based on the Joint Exercise Powers Agreement (JPA - July 
1997) projected average dry weather flows (ADWF), estimated  wet weather infiltration and inflow into the 
collection systems, as well as several other assumptions. These flows are documented in the LAVWMA Wet 
Weather Operations Model Update – Phase V Report (Carollo, 2008) as well as referenced in the 2013 letter 
report. The flows and the anticipated future storage needs for the 10-year event based on ADWF are 
included in Table 1. 

In September 2017, DSRSD completed a Wastewater Treatment Plant Master Plan (West Yost Associates) 
that included updated ADWF estimates for existing conditions as well as projections for 2035. These 
estimates are 9.7 mgd and 12.3 mgd, respectively. These flows are substantially lower than the JPA 
estimates used in the Phase V report. Water use efficiency has changed significantly over time and 
consequently wastewater flows have been lower than anticipated.  With the lower ADWF’s, there is more 
room in the storage facilities and export pipeline to accommodate wet weather flows. Therefore, the need 
for additional storage is no longer anticipated. 

Previously, additional storage was needed to contain flows up to the 10-year event around 2030 with a 
DSRSD ADWF estimate of 17.75 mgd (and a total ADWF estimate of 26.73 mgd including Livermore). Now 
that DSRSD’s ADWF estimate for 2035 is 12.3 mgd, additional storage for the 10-year event is essentially not 
needed anytime in the future. 

Date: 09/19/18 

Project No.: 10291J.00 
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PROJECT MEMORANDUM 

PAGE 2 of 2 

Table 1 - Anticipated Future Storage Needs for 10-Year Design Event 

Year 
DSRSD  

ADWF (mgd) 
Livermore ADWF 

(mgd) 
Total Projected ADWF 

(mgd)(1) 
Anticipated Storage 

Needs (MG) 

1998 9.63 5.71 15.34 0 

2005 12.26 6.72 18.98 0 

2010 13.89 7.21 21.10 0 

2015 15.81 7.72 23.53 0 

2020 16.68 8.08 24.76 0 

2025 17.43 8.48 25.91 0 

2030 17.75 8.98 26.73 0 

2035 18.00 9.47 27.47 2 

2040 18.24 9.47 27.71 7 

JPA (2) 20.7 11.1 31.8 30 
Notes: 
(1) Total Projected Average Dry Weather Flow (ADWF) is the sum of member agency ADWFs, based on General Plan projections (from 2008 

Report). 
(2) JPA refers to the contractual ADWF limit for each member agency, as defined within the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, July 1997 

The estimated required storage in Table 1 is based on the following assumptions: 

• Future Infiltration and Inflow (I/I) based on service area growth and 1% annual deterioration
• Projected ADWFs based on General Plan projections for each member agency
• LAVWMA export capacity of 41.2 mgd
• Total existing storage capacity equals 54.7 MG and does not include storage at DSRSD's dedicated

land disposal site.

Prepared by: 

Shawn Dent: 

SD:dlt 
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ITEM NO. 12 PROCLAMATION FOR DWIGHT L. “PAT” HOWARD 
 
Action Requested 
Approve a Proclamation for Dwight L. “Pat” Howard.  
 
Summary 
Dwight L. “Pat” Howard has served on the DSRSD Board since 2004. He has also served on the 
LAVWMA Board as Director or alternate for ten of the last fourteen years. Please refer to the 
attached Proclamation recognizing Mr. Howard’s contributions to LAVWMA and DSRSD.  
 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the Board approve the Proclamation for Dwight L. “Pat” Howard. 
 
Attachments 
Proclamation for Dwight L. “Pat” Howard.  
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Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency 
 

PROCLAMATION 
For 

 

Dwight L. “Pat” Howard 
 

In Recognition of his Service to LAVWMA, DSRSD, and to the Community 
 

 
WHEREAS, Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency (LAVWMA) is a joint 

powers public agency in the State of California, that includes Dublin San Ramon Services District 
(DSRSD), City of Livermore, and City of Pleasanton; and 

 
WHEREAS, Dwight L. “Pat” Howard served on the LAVWMA Board of Directors as Director or 

Alternate for 10 of the last 14 years, including, as Chair in 2006-2007 and 2009-2010; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Dwight L. “Pat” Howard was first elected to the Board of Directors of Dublin San 
Ramon Services District (DSRSD) in 2004, and served as Board President in 2007, 2011, and 2016; and 
 

WHEREAS, Dwight L. “Pat” Howard also served on the Dublin San Ramon Services District East 
Bay Municipal Utility District Recycled Water Authority (DERWA) Board of Directors, as Chair in 2014 
and 2018; and 

 
WHEREAS, Dwight L. “Pat” Howard has been a strong proponent of environmental stewardship 

and recycled water projects by LAVWMA’s member agencies; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dwight L. “Pat” Howard served on numerous DSRSD Committees, including Water 

Resources Committee, Finance Committee, Wastewater Committee, and Executive Committee during his 
tenure; and 
 

WHEREAS, Dwight L. “Pat” Howard has always been supportive of LAVWMA staff and their 
efforts to manage the system. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED that the Board of Directors of Livermore-Amador 
Valley Water Management Agency, a joint powers public agency in the State of California, thanks 

 
Dwight L. “Pat” Howard 

 
for his 14 years of hard work, support, and leadership and commends him for fulfilling his duties and 
responsibilities with integrity, and celebrates his dedicated commitment to public service. 

 
Adopted unanimously this 21st day of November 2018 

 
 

____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Madelyne Misheloff, Chair    Jerry Pentin, Vice Chair 
 
 
____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Edward Duarte, Director    John Marchand, Director 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Karla Brown, Director     Bob Woerner, Director 
 
 
____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Charles V. Weir, General Manager   Sue Montague, Administrative Assistant 
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ITEM NO. 13 UPDATE AND RESPONSE TO VARIOUS LEGAL AND LEGISLATIVE 
ISSUES 
 
Action Requested 
None at this time. 
 
Summary 
Attached for the Board’s information is the listing of California Association of Sanitation 
Agencies (CASA) Bill Positions as of October 1, 2018. Following is the current status and brief 
description of the bills on the list. 
 
 AB 958 would require manufactures to report on the presence of perfluoralkyl and 

polyfluoroalkyl substances, which are detected in wastewater. As of August 21, 2018, the bill 
has been ordered to the inactive file.  

 AB 1529 requires certification for cross-connection and backflow prevention device 
inspectors. The bill was vetoed by the Governor determining that it was unnecessary as 
certification is already in development. CASA opposed this bill.  

 AB 1912 is related to PERS retirement liability for joint powers agencies. It is not applicable 
to LAVWMA. The bill was approved by the Governor. 

 AB 2060 would require advanced payments of grants for nonprofits or disadvantaged 
communities. The bill was vetoed by the Governor. 

 AB 2064 is also related to advanced payments of grants for nonprofits and disadvantaged 
communities. The bill was vetoed by the Governor. CASA supported this bill.  

 AB 2179 would allow municipal corporations to lease, sell, or transfer sewer service outside 
of the boundaries of the municipal corporation. The bill was approved by the Governor. 

 AB 2339 is related to specific cities in southern California and was approved by the 
Governor. 

 AB 2411 would require the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery to develop 
plans for using compost for slope stabilization following a wildfire. The bill was approved by 
the Governor. CASA supported this bill.  

 SB 2447 established new CEQA requirements. The bill was vetoed by the Governor. CASA 
opposed this bill.  

 SB 2890 would prohibit the imposition of lot coverage standards of a certain minimum size. 
The bill is listed as dead. 

 SB 212 would establish stewardship programs for manufacturers of drugs or sharps. The bill 
was approved by the Governor. CASA supported this bill.  

 SB 929 would require every special district to maintain an internet website. LAVWMA and 
the member agencies are already in compliance with this requirement.  

 SB 966 is related to regulations for onsite treated nonpotable water systems. It was approved 
by the Governor.  
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 SB 998 would require a water system to have a written policy on discontinuation of service. 
The bill was approved by the Governor. 

 SB 1215 would allow regional water boards to order provision of sewer service to a 
disadvantaged community. The bill was approved by the Governor. It is unlikely that this bill 
would apply to the member agencies. 

 SB1263 would provide for research toward the development of a statewide microplastics 
strategy. The bill was approved by the Governor. The strategy will likely lead to permit 
requirements for the member agencies. 

 SB 2310 is related to dam safety and was vetoed by the Governor. 
 SB 1422 would require the State Water Board to adopt a definition of microplastics in 

drinking water, and adopt standards for testing, reporting, and disclosure of results. This bill 
was approved by the Governor. The standards will eventually have an impact on the member 
agencies.  

 AB 1933 would specify that projects that reduce greenhouse gas emissions through waste 
diversion and recycling are eligible for grant funding programs. This bill was approved by 
the Governor and was supported by CASA. 

 AB 1981 is related to the regulation and application of compost. The bill was approved by 
the Governor.  

 AB 3187 is related to the regulation of the production and distribution of biomethane gas. 
This bill was approved by the Governor and was supported by CASA.  

 SB 100 sets goals for the development of renewable sources of electricity. This bill was 
approved by the Governor.  

 SB 1131 would require the Public Utilities Commission (PUC) to authorize electric and gas 
utilities to provide incentives, rebates, technical assistance, and support to increase energy 
efficiency.  

 SB 1440 would require the PUC and State Air Board to consider adopting biomethane targets 
and goals. This bill was approved by the Governor and was supported by CASA. 

 AB 2249 sets new levels for the implementation of the Uniform Public Construction Cost 
Accounting Act (UPCCAA). This bill was approved by the Governor and was supported by 
CASA. In March 2015 LAVWMA adopted an ordinance to become subject to the UPCCAA. 
The ordinance does not specify particular dollar amounts. It is structured broadly to follow 
the applicable requirements under the UPCCAA. The new thresholds will simply be 
applicable on the first of the year, and no further action is necessary. 

 AB 2822 authorizes the State Auditor to identify local governments that are at high risk for 
fraud or waste. This bill was approved by the Governor.  

 SB 1077 is related to insurance requirements for public works projects. This bill was placed 
in the inactive file.  
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 AB 2538 requires the State Water Board to establish financial capability assessment 
guidelines for stormwater programs. The Bill was vetoed by the Governor and was supported 
by CASA. 

 
Recommendation 
There is no recommendation at this time. 
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All CASA Bill Positions
10/1/2018

AB 958 (Ting D)   Product safety: perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances.
Current Text: Amended: 5/31/2018   html   pdf
Last Amend: 5/31/2018
Status: 8/31/2018-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(b)(18). (Last location was S. INACTIVE FILE on
8/21/2018)
Location: 8/31/2018-S. DEAD
Summary: Current law regulates the existence of, and disclosure of, specified chemicals and
components in consumer products, including phthalates and bisphenol A.This bill would require a
manufacturer of food packaging or cookware, as defined, that is sold in the state to visibly disclose on
an exterior location of the food packaging or cookware packaging a specified statement relating to the
presence of perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS).

Position  Subject 
Watch 

AB 1529 (Thurmond D)   Drinking water: cross-connection or backflow prevention device inspectors:
certification.
Current Text: Vetoed: 9/19/2018   html   pdf
Last Amend: 8/14/2018
Status: 9/19/2018-Vetoed by Governor.
Location: 9/19/2018-A. VETOED
Summary: Current law requires the State Water Resources Control Board, on or before January 1,
2020, to adopt standards for backflow protection and cross-connection control. This bill would require
valid and current certifications for cross-connection inspection and testing or backflow prevention
device inspection, testing, and maintenance that meet specified requirements for competency to be
accepted certification tests either until the state board promulgates standards for certified backflow
prevention device testers and cross-connection control specialists, or until January 1, 2020, whichever
comes first.

Position  Subject 
Disapprove 

AB 1912 (Rodriguez D)   Public employees’ retirement: joint powers agreements: liability.
Current Text: Chaptered: 9/29/2018   html   pdf
Last Amend: 8/24/2018
Status: 9/29/2018-Signed by the Governor
Location: 9/29/2018-A. CHAPTERED
Summary: The Joint Exercise of Powers Act generally authorizes 2 or more public agencies, by
agreement, to jointly exercise any common power. Under the act, if an agency is not one or more of
the parties to the agreement but is a public entity, commission, or board constituted pursuant to the
agreement, the debts, liabilities, and obligations of the agency are the debts, liabilities, and
obligations of the parties to the agreement, unless the agreement specifies otherwise. Thsi bill would
specify that the parties to the joint powers agreement may not specify otherwise with respect to
retirement liabilities of the agency if the agency contracts with a public retirement system, and would
eliminate an authorization for a party to a joint powers agreement to separately contract or assume
responsibilities for specific debts, liabilities, or obligations of the agency.

Position  Subject 
Watch 

Notes 1:  2018.07.13 Changed from Oppose Unless Amended to Watch at SLC

AB 2060 (Garcia, Eduardo D)   Water: grants: advanced payments.
Current Text: Vetoed: 9/28/2018   html   pdf
Last Amend: 8/21/2018
Status: 9/28/2018-Vetoed by Governor.
Location: 9/28/2018-A. VETOED
Summary: Would require the State Water Resources Control Board, within 60 days of awarding a
grant from the grant fund, to provide a project proponent that requests an advanced payment and
satisfies certain criteria with the requested advanced payment, up to a maximum of $500,000 or 50%
of the grant award, whichever is less, for projects in which the project proponent is a nonprofit
organization or a disadvantaged community, or the project benefits a disadvantaged community. The
bill would require the advanced funds to be handled as prescribed. Page 1/8
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bill would require the advanced funds to be handled as prescribed.

      Position      Subject   
      Support         
 

  AB 2064 (Gloria D)   Integrated regional water management plans: grants: advanced payment.
  Current Text: Vetoed: 9/28/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 6/27/2018
  Status: 9/28/2018-Vetoed by Governor.
  Location: 9/28/2018-A. VETOED
  Summary: Current law, until January 1, 2025, requires a regional water management group, within 90

days of notice that a grant has been awarded, to provide the Department of Water Resources with a
list of projects to be funded by the grant funds if the project proponent is a nonprofit organization or a
disadvantaged community or the project benefits a disadvantaged community. Current law requires
the department, within 60 days of receiving this project information, to provide advanced payment of
50% of the grant award for those projects that satisfy specified criteria. The bill, until January 1, 2025,
would require the department to provide a project proponent that requests advanced payment and
satisfies certain criteria with advanced payment for those projects of $500,000 or 50% of the grant
award, whichever is less.

      Position      Subject   
      Support         
 

  AB 2179 (Gipson D)   Municipal corporations: public utility service: water and sewer service.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/28/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/15/2018
  Status: 9/28/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 863,

Statutes of 2018.
  Location: 9/28/2018-A. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Current law authorizes a municipal corporation to sell or dispose of any public utility it

owns. Current law requires that a resolution authorizing the sale of a public utility be passed by 2/3 of
the members of the legislative body of the municipal corporation and be passed by a 2/3 vote of all
voters voting at an election to authorize the sale in the ordinance calling the election. Current law
establishes an alternative procedure whereby a municipal corporation can lease, sell, or transfer that
portion of a water utility used for furnishing water service outside the boundaries of the municipal
corporation. This bill would additionally authorize a municipal corporation to utilize the alternative
procedures to lease, sell, or transfer that portion of a municipal utility used for furnishing sewer service
outside the boundaries of the municipal corporation.

      Position      Subject   
      Watch         
 

  AB 2339 (Gipson D)   Water utility service: sale of water utility property by a city.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/28/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/15/2018
  Status: 9/28/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 866,

Statutes of 2018.
  Location: 9/28/2018-A. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Would authorize the City of El Monte, the City of Montebello, and the City of Willows, until

January 1, 2022, to sell its public utility for furnishing water service for the purpose of consolidating its
public water system with another public water system pursuant to the specified procedures, only if the
potentially subsumed water system is wholly within the boundaries of the city, if the city determines
that it is uneconomical and not in the public interest to own and operate the public utility, and if certain
requirements are met. The bill would prohibit the city from selling the public utility for one year if 50%
of interested persons, as defined, protest the sale.

      Position      Subject   
      Watch         
 

  AB 2411 (McCarty D)   Solid waste: use of compost: planning.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 8/28/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 6/12/2018
  Status: 8/28/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 238,

Statutes of 2018.
  Location: 8/28/2018-A. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Would require the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, on or before December

31, 2019, to develop and implement a plan to maximize the use of compost for slope stabilization and
for establishing vegetation in the course of providing debris removal services following a wildfire. The
bill would also require the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, in coordination with the
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Department of Transportation, to identify best practices for each of the Department of Transportation’s
12 districts regarding the cost-effective use of compost along roadways and to develop a plan to
implement the identified best practices in each of the districts.

      Position      Subject   
      Support/work

w/author 
       

 

  AB 2447 (Reyes D)   California Environmental Quality Act: land use: environmental justice.
  Current Text: Vetoed: 9/30/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/24/2018
  Status: 9/30/2018-Vetoed by the Governor
  Location: 9/30/2018-A. VETOED
  Summary: Would, except as provided, require a lead agency that is preparing an EIR or a negative

declaration to provide certain notices required by CEQA to owners and occupants of property located
within1/2 mile of any parcel or parcels, and to any schools located within one mile of any parcel or
parcels, on which is located a project involving an industrial or equivalent land use, as defined, within a
disadvantaged community or within 1/2 mile of a disadvantaged community.

      Position      Subject   
      Oppose, unless

amended 
       

 

  AB 2890 (Ting D)   Land use: accessory dwelling units.
  Current Text: Amended: 7/3/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 7/3/2018
  Status: 8/31/2018-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(b)(18). (Last location was S. RLS. on

8/16/2018)
  Location: 8/31/2018-S. DEAD
  Summary: The Planning and Zoning Law authorizes a local agency to provide by ordinance for the

creation of accessory dwelling units in single-family and multifamily residential zones and sets forth
standards the ordinance is required to impose, including, among others, maximum unit size, parking,
lot coverage, and height standards. Current law prohibits the ordinance from establishing size
requirements for accessory dwelling units that do not permit at least an efficiency unit to be
constructed. This bill would prohibit the imposition of lot coverage standards or requirements on
minimum lot size, lot coverage, or floor area ratio, and would prohibit an ordinance from establishing
size requirements for accessory dwelling units that do not permit at least an 800 square foot unit of at
least 16 feet in height to be constructed.

      Position      Subject   
      Neutral, As

Amended 
       

 

  SB 212 (Jackson D)   Solid waste: pharmaceutical and sharps waste stewardship.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 10/1/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/27/2018
  Status: 10/1/2018-Signed by the Governor
  Location: 10/1/2018-S. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Would establish a stewardship program, under which a manufacturer or distributor of

covered drugs or sharps, or other entity defined to be covered by the bill, would be required to
establish and implement, either on its own or as part of a group of covered entities through
membership in a stewardship organization, a stewardship program for covered drugs or for sharps, as
applicable. The bill would impose various requirements on a covered entity or stewardship
organization that operates a stewardship program, including submitting a proposed stewardship plan,
an initial stewardship program budget, an annual budget, annual report, and other specified
information to CalRecycle.

      Position      Subject   
      Support         
 

  SB 929 (McGuire D)   Special districts: Internet Web sites.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/15/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/16/2018
  Status: 9/14/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State. Chapter 408, Statutes

of 2018.
  Location: 9/14/2018-S. CHAPTERED
  Summary: The California Public Records Act requires a local agency to make public records available for

inspection and allows a local agency to comply by posting the record on its Internet Web site and
directing a member of the public to the Internet Web site, as specified. This bill would, beginning on
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January 1, 2020, require every independent special district to maintain an Internet Web site that
clearly lists contact information for the special district, except as provided. Because this bill would
require local agencies to provide a new service, the bill would impose a state-mandated local program.

      Position      Subject   
      Support         
 

  SB 966 (Wiener D)   Onsite treated nonpotable water systems.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/28/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/23/2018
  Status: 9/28/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State. Chapter 890, Statutes

of 2018.
  Location: 9/28/2018-S. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Would, on or before December 1, 2022, require the State Water Resources Control Board,

in consultation with the California Building Standards Commission and the Department of Housing and
Community Development, to adopt regulations for risk-based water quality standards for the onsite
treatment and reuse of nonpotable water, as provided. The bill would authorize the state board to
contract with public or private entities regarding the content of the standards.

      Position      Subject   
      Neutral, As

Amended 
       

 

  SB 998 (Dodd D)   Discontinuation of residential water service: urban and community water systems.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/28/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/6/2018
  Status: 9/28/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State. Chapter 891, Statutes

of 2018.
  Location: 9/28/2018-S. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Would require an urban and community water system, defined as a public water system

that supplies water to more than 200 service connections, to have a written policy on discontinuation
of water service to certain types of residences for nonpayment available in prescribed languages. The
bill would require the policy to include certain components, be available on the system’s Internet Web
site, and be provided to customers in writing, upon request.

      Position      Subject   
      Watch         
 

  SB 1215 (Hertzberg D)   Provision of sewer service: disadvantaged communities.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/30/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/24/2018
  Status: 9/30/2018-Signed by the Governor
  Location: 9/30/2018-S. CHAPTERED
  Summary: The Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act requires each California regional water

quality control board to adopt water quality control plans and to establish water quality objectives in
those plans, considering certain factors, to ensure the reasonable protection of beneficial uses and the
prevention of nuisance. This bill would, except as provided, authorize the regional board to order the
provision of sewer service by a special district, city, or county to a disadvantaged community, as
defined, under specified circumstances. By authorizing the regional board to require a special district,
city, or county to provide sewer service, this bill would impose a state-mandated local program.

      Position      Subject   
      Oppose, unless

amended 
       

 

  SB 1263 (Portantino D)   Ocean Protection Council: Statewide Microplastics Strategy.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/20/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 6/28/2018
  Status: 9/20/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State. Chapter 609, Statutes

of 2018.
  Location: 9/20/2018-S. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Would require the Ocean Protection Counci, to the extent funds are available from bonds or

other sources, to adopt and implement a Statewide Microplastics Strategy related to microplastic
materials that pose an emerging concern for ocean health and that includes specified components, as
provided. The bill would authorize the council, in collaboration with the State Water Resources Control
Board, the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, and other interested entities, to enter
into one or more contracts with marine research institutes in the state for the provision of research
services that would contribute directly to the development of the Statewide Microplastics Strategy.

      Position      Subject   
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      Sponsored -
Important -
Support 

       

 

  SB 1301 (Beall D)   State permitting: environment: processing procedures: dam safety or flood risk
reduction project.

  Current Text: Vetoed: 9/28/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/6/2018
  Status: 9/28/2018-Vetoed by the Governor. In Senate. Consideration of Governor's veto pending.
  Location: 9/28/2018-S. VETOED
  Summary: Would require the Office of Planning and Research to develop a joint multiagency

preapplication for supplemental consultation and a model fee-for-service agreement, in consultation
with a state agency with the power to issue a permit that would authorize a dam safety project or
authorize a flood risk reduction project and any interested potential project applicants. The bill would
authorize a project applicant to complete a joint multiagency preapplication and submit the
preapplication to each state agency named in the preapplication at any time.

      Position      Subject   
      Watch         
 

  SB 1422 (Portantino D)   California Safe Drinking Water Act: microplastics.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/28/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/23/2018
  Status: 9/28/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State. Chapter 902, Statutes

of 2018.
  Location: 9/28/2018-S. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Would require the State Water Resources Control Board, on or before July 1, 2020, to

adopt a definition of microplastics in drinking water, and on or before July 1, 2021, to adopt a standard
methodology to be used in the testing of drinking water for microplastics and requirements for 4 years
of testing and reporting of microplastics in drinking water, including public disclosure of those results.

      Position      Subject   
      Watch, work

w/author 
       

  Climate Change/Energy Workgroup

 

  AB 1933 (Maienschein R)   Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund: recycling infrastructure projects.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/27/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 6/25/2018
  Status: 9/27/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 808,

Statutes of 2018.
  Location: 9/27/2018-A. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Current law requires the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, with additional

moneys from the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund that may be appropriated to the department, to
administer a grant program to provide financial assistance, in the form of grants, incentive payments,
contracts, or other funding mechanisms, to reduce emissions of greenhouse gases by promoting the
in-state development of infrastructure, food waste prevention, or other projects to reduce organic
waste or to process organic and other recyclable materials into new value-added products. Current
law specifies eligible uses that qualify for in-state infrastructure projects or other projects that reduce
emissions of greenhouse gases as part of these funding mechanisms. This bill would additionally
specify as an eligible use for in-state infrastructure projects or other projects that reduce emissions of
greenhouse gases activities that expand and improve waste diversion and recycling, including the
recovery of food for human consumption and food waste prevention.

      Position      Subject   
      Support      Climate

Change/Energy
Workgroup 

 

 

  AB 1981 (Limón D)   Organic waste: composting.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/21/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/21/2018
  Status: 9/21/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 633,

Statutes of 2018.
  Location: 9/21/2018-A. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Current law requires, until January 1, 2021, the California Environmental Protection Agency,
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in coordination with the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, the State Water Resources
Control Board, the State Air Resources Board, and the Department of Food and Agriculture, to develop
and implement policies to aid in diverting organic waste from landfills by promoting the composting of
specified organic waste and by promoting the appropriate use of that compost throughout the state.
This bill would revise and recast this and related provisions, including, among other changes, imposing
additional duties on those state agencies relating to promoting the application of compost and
additionally including the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection in the state agencies in
coordination with which the California Environmental Protection Agency is required to develop and
implement the above-specified policies.

      Position      Subject   
      Work w/author      Climate

Change/Energy
Workgroup 

 

 

  AB 3187 (Grayson D)   Biomethane: gas corporations: rates: interconnection.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/20/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/21/2018
  Status: 9/20/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 598,

Statutes of 2018.
  Location: 9/20/2018-A. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Current law requires the Public Utilities Commission, before exhaustion of the funds

available pursuant to the biomethane monetary incentive program, and before the expiration of the
program, to consider options to promote the in-state production and distribution of biomethane. With
respect to the requirement that the commission consider options to promote the in-state production
and distribution of biomethane, including consideration of recovery in rates of the costs of investments
for the 3 purposes as specified, the bill would additionally require the commission to open a
proceeding to consider those options by no later than July 1, 2019.

      Position      Subject   
      Support

Concept/Work
w/Author 

    Climate
Change/Energy
Workgroup 

 

 

  SB 100 (De León D)   California Renewables Portfolio Standard Program: emissions of greenhouse gases.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/10/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/20/2018
  Status: 9/10/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State. Chapter 312, Statutes

of 2018.
  Location: 9/10/2018-S. CHAPTERED
  Summary: The Legislature has found and declared that its intent in implementing the California

Renewables Portfolio Standard Program is to attain, among other targets for sale of eligible renewable
resources, the target of 50% of total retail sales of electricity by December 31, 2030. This bill would
revise the above-described legislative findings and declarations to state that the goal of the program
is to achieve that 50% renewable resources target by December 31, 2026, and to achieve a 60%
target by December 31, 2030.

      Position      Subject   
      Watch      Climate

Change/Energy
Workgroup 

 

 

  SB 1131 (Hertzberg D)   Electrical and gas corporations: energy efficiency: financing options: industrial
and agricultural processes: custom projects.

  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/19/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/24/2018
  Status: 9/19/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State. Chapter 562, Statutes

of 2018.
  Location: 9/19/2018-S. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Current law requires the PUC to authorize electrical corporations and gas corporations to

count all energy savings achieved through the authorized programs, unless determined otherwise,
toward overall energy efficiency goals or targets established by the PUC and authorizes the PUC to
adjust the energy efficiency goals or targets of electrical corporations and gas corporations to reflect
the estimated change in energy savings resulting from those programs. This bill would delete the
language explicitly authorizing recovery in rates for the costs of those programs. Commencing July 1,
2019, this bill would require the PUC to authorize electrical corporations and gas corporations to
provide incentives, rebates, technical assistance, and support to their customers to increase energy
efficiency, pursuant to separate procedures applicable only to custom projects and other custom
programs for industrial, agricultural, commercial, residential, and public sector customers.
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      Position      Subject   
      Seek Info      Climate

Change/Energy
Workgroup 

 

 

  SB 1440 (Hueso D)   Energy: biomethane: biomethane procurement.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/23/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/20/2018
  Status: 9/23/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State. Chapter 739, Statutes

of 2018.
  Location: 9/23/2018-S. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Would require the Public Utilities Commission, in consultation with the State Air Resources

Board, to consider adopting specific biomethane procurement targets or goals for each gas
corporation, as specified. The bill would require the PUC, if the PUC adopts those targets or goals, to
take certain actions in regards to the development of the targets or goals and the procurement of the
biomethane to meet those targets or goals.

      Position      Subject   
      Support      Climate

Change/Energy
Workgroup 

 

  Local Government

 

  AB 2249 (Cooley D)   Public contracts: local agencies: alternative procedure.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 8/20/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 6/4/2018
  Status: 8/20/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 169,

Statutes of 2018.
  Location: 8/20/2018-A. CHAPTERED
  Summary: The Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act permits the governing body of a public

agency, in the event all bids received for the performance of that public project are in excess of
$175,000, to award the contract at $187,500 or less to the lowest responsible bidder if it determines
the cost estimate of the public agency was reasonable. This bill would instead authorize public projects
of $60,000 or less to be performed by the employees of a public agency, authorize public projects of
$200,000 or less to be let to contract by informal procedures, and require public projects of more than
$200,000 to be let to contract by formal bidding procedures.

      Position      Subject   
      Support      Local

Government 
 

 

  AB 2822 (Obernolte R)   California State Auditor: high-risk local government agency audit program.
  Current Text: Chaptered: 9/18/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/22/2018
  Status: 9/18/2018-Approved by the Governor. Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 498,

Statutes of 2018.
  Location: 9/18/2018-A. CHAPTERED
  Summary: Current law authorizes the state auditor to establish a high-risk local government agency

audit program for the purpose of identifying, auditing, and issuing reports on any local government
agency that he or she identifies as at high risk for fraud or waste, among other things. Current law
authorizes the auditor to consult with the Controller, Attorney General, and other state agencies that
have oversight responsibilities over any local government agency to identify local governments that
are at high risk. This bill would additionally authorize the California State Auditor to review publicly
available information to identify local governments that are at high risk.

      Position      Subject   
      Watch      Local

Government 
 

 

  SB 1077 (Wilk R)   Construction contracts: wrap-up insurance and indemnification.
  Current Text: Amended: 8/24/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/24/2018
  Status: 8/31/2018-Failed Deadline pursuant to Rule 61(b)(18). (Last location was A. INACTIVE FILE on

8/28/2018)
  Location: 8/31/2018-A. DEAD
  Summary: Current law regulates the use of wrap-up insurance or other consolidated insurance
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programs in connection with specified construction projects. Current law distinguishes, in this regard,
between residential construction projects, private residential works of improvement, as specified, and
public works and other projects that are not residential, as specified. This bill would recast the wrap-
up insurance or other consolidated insurance program requirements for public and other works of
improvement that are not residential construction, entered into or amended on and after January 1,
2019, to track generally the requirements that apply to residential projects.

      Position      Subject   
      Refer to Attys'

Committee 
    Local

Government 
 

  Spot Bills

 

  AB 2538 (Rubio D)   Municipal separate storm sewer systems: financial capability analysis.
  Current Text: Vetoed: 9/28/2018   html   pdf
  Last Amend: 8/24/2018
  Status: 9/28/2018-Vetoed by Governor.
  Location: 9/28/2018-A. VETOED
  Summary: Would require the State Water Resources Control Board, by July 1, 2019, to establish

financial capability assessment guidelines for municipal separate storm sewer system permittees that
are adequate and consistent when considering the costs to local jurisdictions.

      Position      Subject   
      Approve      Spot Bills   
Total Measures: 28
Total Tracking Forms: 28
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ITEM NO. 14 GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Action Requested 
None at this time. This is an information item only. 
 
Summary 
The General Manager’s (GM) tenure began on April 17, 2014. A two year extension was 
approved on April 20, 2016, and a three year extension was approved on February 21, 2018. The 
agreement requires a report on hours worked during the fiscal year at each Board meeting. There 
is a limitation of 1,000 hours per fiscal year. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 the General 
Manager has billed LAVWMA approximately 200 hours.  
 
In addition to the brief descriptions below, there are several items of interest for the Board’s 
review: 
 

1. Pump Purchase. Despite project delays, all three pumps have been delivered are now 
operating successfully. Refer to the Quarterly Report of Operations for information on 
the improvement in pump efficiency and reduction in energy use. As of this writing, 
LAVWMA has received no invoice, nor a demand for payment from MuniQuip. Cost 
data has been collected to determine extra costs associated with project delay. 
Discussions with MuniQuip regarding project closeout and final payment are expected to 
begin right after the Thanksgiving Holiday.  
 

2. Asset Management. This project is now proceeding well but is likely to be somewhat 
delayed due to the flooding of DSRSD’s District Office. A representative from California 
Sanitation Risk Management Authority met with DSRSD staff on March 20, 2018 to 
conduct a Property Insurance Appraisal. The final report has been received, but it did not 
provide as much detail as anticipated. Work papers that provided more detail on the 
equipment were requested and received. These documents are useful, but additional 
information on individual costs is still needed. Methods for obtaining that information are 
being discussed. In the meantime, DSRSD staff continues to refine the equipment listing 
to ensure its accuracy.  
 

3. Records Management Project and Transfer of Files from Burke, Williams, & 
Sorenson. LAVWMA received 31 boxes of files from General Counsel Alexandra 
Barnhill’s former law firm. Sue Montague has completed an inventory of the documents 
and duplicate items have been tossed. Sue Montague and the General Manager met with 
the records management consultant on October 26, 2018 to discuss the additional records. 
We also discussed digitizing as many records as possible to save on storage space and 
provide long term protection. The current cost estimate for the project is $22,461. The 
consultant did not think that the additional effort would increase the costs significantly. 
This project is also subject to the time frame to restore DSRSD’s offices for normal use. 
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There was no water damage to LAVWMA’s records during the flooding of the building 
as the records were either above the water line or in a building that was not flooded.  
 

4. Amendments to Recycled Water Policy 
The State Water Board has drafted amendments to the Recycled Water Policy. The 
revised version was released on November 15, 2018. It has not yet been thoroughly 
reviewed. WateReuse California has done a cursory review and has noted the following 
significant changes and additions: 
a) Ocean discharge goal remains in the policy as written with the addition of a new goal: 
“Maximize the use of recycled water in areas where groundwater supplies are in a state of 
overdraft, to the extent that downstream water rights, in stream flow requirements, and 
public trust resources are protected. 
b) Recycled Water Reporting - changed to annual report to the Water Board with 
monthly information, agencies are to report discharges to natural systems.  
c) RW Permits - new language appears to require all agencies to transition to the 
General Order (for non-potable projects) in three years. 
d) Salt and Nutrient Management Plans - requires regional boards to review the plans 
ever 5 years instead of 10. Includes many other changes. 
e) Anti-deg analysis - new language that requires agencies to demonstrate compliance 
with the state’s anti degradation policy. 
f) Wastewater Change Petition - modified language that responds to some of the 
WRCA/CASA requests 
g) Bioassays - Appears to give agencies a phased approach to the bioassay monitoring 
before regulatory consequences are required. The first phase is one year and there is 
language that may allow additional time. 
 

5. Nutrients Watershed Permit 
Bay Area Clean Water Agencies (BACWA) and the Regional Board continue to work on 
issues for the renewal of the permit in 2019. The Water Board will likely include goals 
for load caps for Nitrogen with actual caps in 2024. There is discussion about including a 
growth buffer of between 15-25% to provide for growth and unknown issues. There is 
significant discussion about establishing a baseline load for the 2019 permit. A key for 
LAVWMA agencies is ensuring that recycled water flows are added back to the baseline 
so that there are no penalties for reducing nutrient loads the last few years through water 
recycling. The Regional Board has been receptive to this concept. Trading among 
agencies within the EBDA/LAVWMA system will likely be allowed as well, should that 
be necessary to achieve goals. EBDA’s baseline will include contributions from 
LAVWMA.  
 

6. EBDA Issues 
The EBDA agencies continue to discuss modifications to their JPA. Not much progress 
has been made to date. Four agencies are looking at reducing their capacity rights in the 
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system, which would increase the costs for the other member. Reducing capacity for 
some agencies would have a positive impact on LAVWMA’s wet weather pumping 
capabilities, but could ultimately lead to cost increases. The issues are being monitored 
carefully.  
 
EBDA has received a draft Transport Pipeline Condition Assessment Technical 
Memorandum from Brown and Caldwell. A copy of the Executive Summary is included 
as Item No. 14.1. The report concludes … “that with regular inspection and periodic 
maintenance, the transport system should continue to operate usefully for at least the next 
50 to 100 years. This estimate would put the total expected useful operating life at about 
100 to 150 years from the date of construction.” This is consistent with the useful life 
conclusion for the EBDA outfall that was received earlier this year.  

 
7. Correspondence and Reports 

Item No. 14.2 is a letter from Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA). 
The letter notes LAVWMA’s President’s Special Acknowledgement Award – 
Property/Liability Program. Item No. 14.3 is the Annual Comment from Moody’s 
Investor Service. The report notes, “LAVWMA'S credit position is very high quality, and 
its Aa2 rating is slightly above the US wastewater systems median of Aa3.” It also notes, 
“Overall, the financial position of LAVWMA is superlative and is strong in relation to its 
Aa2 rating. The days cash on hand (2,028 days) is excellent and greatly exceeds 
the US median.” The report is also critical of debt service as compared to net revenues. 
This is due to the fact that the report does not consider the financial standing of the 
member agencies.  
 

Following is a brief description of major activities since the August 15, 2018 Board meeting: 
 
● Attended LAVWMA O&M meetings with DSRSD, Livermore and Pleasanton staff.  
● Attended LAVWMA’s annual wet weather meeting with member agency, EBDA, Zone 7, 

and Alameda County Water District staff.  
● Prepared and distributed agenda packet for the November Staff Advisory Group meeting. 
● Drafted items for November 21, 2018 Board Agenda and prepared packet for distribution. 
● Drafted minutes from August 15, 2018 Board meeting and revised based on comments 

received.  
● Made updates to website as needed for files and legal requirements. 
● Continued to work with General Counsel to track legislation of interest to LAVWMA and the 

member agencies. 
● Monitored progress of pump station projects managed by DSRSD staff. This included the 

purchase of new pumps as well as projects described in the attached Action Item List. This 
included numerous trips to the pump station to document progress and issues. Reviewed past 
O&M invoices to document DSRSD extra staff time for the pump replacement project. 
Reviewed and approved proposal from new seals from MuniQuip. The new seals did not leak 
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and appear to have solved the problem. Monitored DSRSD’s online tracking system of the 
pump station to review flows and pump new pump run times. Noted the new pumps were not 
always being used and notified DSRSD staff to have them to the maximum extent possible.  

● Prepared fully executed Joint Defense Agreement and forwarded to General Counsel and 
member agencies.  

● Met with Sue Montague to discuss scope of records management project and to review the 
boxes of files received from General Counsel’s prior firm. Met with records management 
consultant to discuss revised scope of project and digitizing as many files as possible. 
Requested that he review storage areas to ensure that fire sprinklers could not damage files.  

● Reviewed and approved invoices for payment by DSRSD. 
● Met with DSRSD staff to meet new accounting person, Herman Chen, handling LAVWMA 

and discuss transition following retirement of Karen Vaden. 
● Reviewed and commented on draft financial audit and related documents.  
● Drafted financial reports for DSRSD staff in consideration of their time due to the flooding 

of their offices. 
● Worked with Livermore and Pleasanton to find a temporary location for the Board meeting 

due to flooding of the DSRSD Board Room.  
● Continued to Discuss Asset Management issues with DSRSD staff. LAVWMA will follow 

their lead. Please refer to the more detailed discussion above.  
● Worked with DSRSD staff on various inquiries regarding projects near the forcemain to 

ensure there would be no issues of concern with the integrity of the forcemain.  
● Attended EBDA Managers Advisory Committee (MAC) meetings. 
● Worked with General Counsel on the Pleasanton out of service area issue.  
● Prepared and submitted monthly invoices for LAVWMA General Management services.  
● Attended several meetings with BACWA and the Regional Water Board on the Nutrient 

Watershed Permit renewal. Provided summary of meetings and issues to member agency 
staff.  

● Reviewed draft Order from Regional Water Board for spill at San Leandro Sample Station. 
Coordinated comments from all parties and sent to Regional Water Board. They accepted all 
but once modification. Reviewed and signed final Order. Coordinated issuing of payments as 
required by the Order.  

● Continued working with EBDA General Manager on nutrient studies to be based on total 
nitrogen. Worked with member agencies complete BACWA survey related to nutrients 
permit.  

● Met with City of Pleasanton staff to review requirements for Board approval of out of service 
area projects. Forwarded same to General Counsel and noted it would be on the November 
21, 2018 Board Agenda. Requested additional information from City staff including better 
maps and history of connections.  

● Attended Regional Monitoring Program Annual Meeting to hear about likely future permit 
issues related to constituents of emerging concern.  

● Participated in EBDA Manager’s email discussion regarding JPA revision issues.  
● Attended CASA Annual Conference. 
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● Reviewed various financial reports prepared by DSRSD staff. 
● Reviewed and approved DSRSD monthly invoices for O&M services. 
● Continued working with EBDA and LAVWMA agency staff to address enterococcus issues. 
● Reviewed EBDA and DSRSD agenda packets. 
● Reviewed various O&M projects conducted by DSRSD staff on behalf of LAVWMA.  
● Responded to various emails and phone calls from outside agencies and organizations. 
 
Attached for the Board’s information, as Item No. 14.4, is the most recent Action Item List. 
 
Next Meeting 
The next Regular Board meeting is scheduled for February 20, 2019.  
 
Recommendation 
None at this time. This is an information item only. 
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Technical Memorandum Transport Pipeline Condition Assessment 

1 

DRAFT for review purposes only. Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the beginning of this document. 

EBDA FM Cond Assess TM_FINAL DRAFT 10 29 2018 

Executive Summary 
This Technical Memorandum (TM) presents the results of inspections and condition assessment of the East 

Bay Dischargers Authority (Authority) land-based effluent transport system. The transport system force mains 

convey treated effluent along part of the San Francisco Bay’s eastern shoreline for discharge through the 

Authority’s outfall and diffuser off the San Leandro shore. This TM provides project background, describes 

this assignment’s genesis, defines the key portions of the system, explains their function and importance, 

and presents key findings, together with a projection of remaining useful life and recommended 

maintenance going forward. 

Background 

The Authority owns and maintains facilities that collect and convey treated wastewater effluent from 

Authority member agencies (i.e. the transport system effluent pump stations and pipelines) and discharges 

the effluent into San Francisco Bay through the disposal system (i.e. Marina dechlorination station, outfall 

pipeline, and diffuser). The Authority planned, designed, and constructed these facilities in the 1970s. 

The on-shore transport system consists of approximately 11.5 miles of pipelines, four pump stations, and 

four surge towers. The pipelines are constructed of reinforced concrete pipe (RCP) with internal diameters of 

48 inches, 60 inches, and 96 inches. San Leandro Water Pollution Control Plant (SLWPCP) pumps its 

effluent south to the Marina Dechlorination Facility (MDF); Union Sanitary District-Alvarado Treatment Plant 

and Hayward Water Pollution Control Facility pump their effluent north to the Oro Loma/Castro Valley Water 

Pollution Control Plant; the Authority’s Oro Loma effluent pump station (OLEPS) then pumps the combined 

effluent to the MDF. Flow from the Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency (LAVWMA) enters 

the pipeline between Oro Loma and the MDF. From the MDF, the combined effluent is discharged via the 7-

mile-long outfall pipeline and diffuser. Figure ES-1 presents a system overview map. 

The transport system is approaching 50 years of age. The Authority is interested in determining its actual 

remaining useful life because replacing the system would impose a heavy cost burden on the Authority’s 

member agencies. However, extensive research and investigation by other West Coast dischargers has 

shown that competently manufactured and installed RCP, when used to convey treated effluent, typically has 

a service life much greater than its design life, very likely extending beyond 100 years, with only minor 

degradation of system hydraulic capacity. The Authority requested field investigations and evaluation to 

determine whether its RCP has comparable remaining useful service life. 

In 2013, as part of its long-range planning effort, the Authority developed a preliminary asset management 

plan which addressed all of its facilities. The plan stated that the transport pipelines originally had a design 

useful life of approximately 80 years. In 2013, approximately 35 years after construction, the remaining 

useful life was expected to be about 45 years. Owing to this relatively short projected remaining life and 

potentially huge capital cost to replace the transport system, the Authority engaged Brown and Caldwell (BC) 

to carry out a more detailed inspection plan and condition assessment for this critical asset. 

From 2015 through 2018, Brown and Caldwell (BC) assisted the Authority in the development and 

implementation of a two-phased condition assessment program to determine the existing condition of (1) 

the disposal system, and (2) the transport systems, estimate their remaining useful life, determine any 

required repairs or rehabilitation, and recommend operations and maintenance (O&M) practices going 

forward. The results of those assessments indicate that with regular maintenance, the Authority can expect 

a very long service life from its transport/disposal system assets, much longer than the original 50-year 

design life. 
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Figure ES-1. Transport system alignment. 

The following sections describe in more detail the results of the transport system inspection program and 

condition assessment that BC and the Authority implemented during the fall of 2017 and spring of 2018. 

Pipeline Interior Inspections 

Based on BC’s scope for the inspection work, the Authority engaged RedZone Robotics (RedZone) as the 

prime subcontractor to carry out pipeline interior inspections. RedZone deployed its multi-sensor inspection 

(MSI) platform “Responder” to inspect the 48-inch- and 60-inch-diameter force mains. Inspection 

technologies included closed circuit television (CCTV) video, 3D laser imaging (LiDAR), and sonar profiling. 

Visual Inspection: CCTV footage revealed little to no deterioration of the pipeline interior concrete surface. 

The video revealed no evidence of pipe wall or joint deterioration, but the pipe surface, especially in 

locations that are continually submerged, is covered by what appears to be a thin layer of attached biological 

growth; however, this growth in no way affects the structural integrity or function of the pipeline and does not 

appear to promote microbiologically induced corrosion. 

Figure ES-2 shows a few representative CCTV screenshots, specifically from the San Leandro-to-Marina 

segment. In all captions, upstream is towards SLWPCP, downstream is towards MDF. 
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Figure ES-2. CCTV screenshots, San Leandro-Marina (SLM) segment 

Laser Diameter Measurements: Light Detection and Ranging (LiDAR) is a surveying method that uses 3D 

laser technology to generate precise models of pipe surfaces. The models can reveal minor surface 

abnormalities and allow for accurate interior diameter measurements.  

LiDAR data collected during MSI inspections show that measured diameters are consistently between 0.5 

inch and 1.2 inches larger than pipeline nominal diameters, values which are within typical AWWA and 

manufacturing tolerances and, in our opinion and industry experience, are not an indication of wall loss. 

Other indicators—i.e. visible surface stencils, smoothness at joints—confirm the pipe integrity. 

Figure ES-3 shows representative pipe interior cross sections from the 60-inch-diameter Oro Loma-Hayward 

force main segment, derived from LiDAR data and compared to CCTV images at the same locations. Note 

that in the top set, minor concrete surface spalling was observed, but the cross section confirms it has 

resulted in negligible internal diameter deviation. In the bottom set, the internal diameter was reported to be 

larger than expected (i.e. nominal), but the CCTV shows no signs of surface damage or wall loss. 
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Figure ES-3. LiDAR cross sections and CCTV at same locations 

Sediment Accumulation: Sonar inspection uses soundwaves to build a profile of a pipeline beneath the 

flowline. It provides no information above the flowline, and its resolution is limited to gross defects such as 

debris and other objects typically located at the pipe invert. 

Sonar data show virtually no sediment accumulation throughout any inspected segments. The minor amount 

of sediment (< 1-inch deep) in some locations has no adverse effect on pipeline functionality or longevity. 

Manhole Inspections 

The MH inspection plan included performing surface and interior (confined-space) inspections of all 39 of 

the transport system standard MHs and associated appurtenances along the force main alignment. 

Inspections did not reveal any significant structural or surface defects, and we can conclude that transport 

system MHs are not subject to concrete corrosion. The most commonly observed structural issue was 

concrete collar cracking and erosion around the collars, but only at a handful of MHs. None of the covers are 

damaged or missing, all the interior walls and floors are in good to fair condition, and all except one of the 

access ladders are in good condition. The coating on one MH is blistering and should be touched up before it 

completely fails. 
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Inspectors observed evidence of infiltration and pooled water inside several manholes, but only observed 

active infiltration in one MH, which had seeping infiltration. Most MHs had water in the small floor sump, 

several MHs had a few inches of water on the floor, and a few had several feet of water which Authority staff 

pumped out prior to inspection. Inspections revealed no root intrusion, sediment, debris accumulation, or 

attached deposits. 

Valves and valve piping are in generally good condition, but a few valves, mostly plug valves on blow-off valve 

(BOV) assemblies, are damaged and/or inoperable. Several small-diameter valves, quick connections, and 

endcaps on BOV assemblies appear to have gone without use for a significant period, and their operability is 

uncertain. All the ARVs are functioning as intended, and do not require repairs or replacement now. None of 

the inspected valves or valve piping have immediate need for urgent repair or replacement. 

EPS Exposed Piping Inspection 

During August of 2018, BC performed visual inspections and obtained ultrasonic thickness (UT) 

measurements on exposed metallic piping at the Authority’s four effluent pump stations (EPS). 

The inspection team used an electronic UT testing gauge to assess remaining pipe wall thickness. The gauge 

works on the principle that ultrasonic sound waves travel at different speeds through different media, and 

will reflect, or echo, at the interface between different media. In one of its five measurement modes, it is 

capable of measuring both pipe wall thickness and coating thicknesses with a single measurement, and the 

display shows both values separately. For this assessment, the gauge was set up to use its predefined speed 

of sound through mild steel, and then validated with a steel sample of known, 250 mil thickness. 

Note that in the analysis presented below for each EPS, the remaining pipe wall thickness is based on 

assumed minimum original wall thicknesses. The original specifications, which may have provided more 

accurate information on installed pipe wall thicknesses, were not available for review. 

Hayward EPS. Inspections revealed exterior coating failure and pipe corrosion in isolated spots on pump 

discharge piping. A few portions of the discharge piping appear significantly thinner than expected. On the 

36-inch-diameter header, the interior epoxy coating has failed near the downstream end, particularly from 

springline to crown, and the interior steel pipe walls are corroded. UT measurements indicate that the 

header has typically experienced about 25% wall loss due to corrosion. One spot measurement indicated up 

to 50% wall loss in that location. 

Alvarado EPS. Exterior coating failure and pipe corrosion is visible at floor penetrations on the pump suction 

side piping of all six pumps. The exterior coating is generally sound at all other locations, including the 

discharge side wall penetrations. UT measurements indicate that pipe walls have more than 70% remaining 

wall thickness, with most locations more than 80%, but with isolated thinning in a few spots of interest. 

Oro Loma EPS. The inspection team observed no coating defects and no corrosion. Exterior coatings 

appeared to be in like-new condition. Based on the most conservative estimate of original wall thickness, 

pipe walls appear to have more than 80% remaining wall thickness, with some isolated thinning observed. 

Wall and floor penetration measurements indicate remaining wall thickness of at least 75%, and likely more. 

Original pipe walls were probably thicker than the conservative estimates used during the assessment, and it 

is just as likely that the pipes have not experienced any wall loss. 

San Leandro EPS. The exterior coating on the 48-inch-diameter header is in poor condition, with cracks and 

rust stains in numerous locations. The coating on a flange connection from the common pipe for pumps 3 

and 4 to the header has failed. The flange exhibits minor corrosion where the coating is flaking off. All the 

coatings on all the pump discharge piping assemblies appear like new, with no other observed coating 

defects or corrosion. Pipe walls appear to have more than 80% wall thickness, with most pipe walls 

averaging over 90%. On the header, UT measurements indicate the walls are thinnest at the bottom of the 

pipe, where there is about 70 to 75% remaining wall thickness. 
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Findings. Inspections did not reveal any locations that require immediate attention due to excessive wall loss 

or through-holes. Exterior epoxy coatings are generally intact, except on some pipe run components at 

Hayward EPS, the floor penetrations at Alvarado EPS, and the San Leandro EPS header pipe. The interior 

lining on the Hayward header has failed, and UT measurements indicate that the header has typically 

experienced about 25% wall loss due to corrosion, with up to 50% wall loss in one location. 

Conclusions 

Despite its almost 50-year age and exposure, the transport system pipelines and concrete manhole 

structures show no signs of structural damage or deterioration. BC inspected a representative sample of 

areas with elevated risk, such as high points susceptible to air entrainment, and found the system to be in 

overall good condition. There is no indication that would lead us to suspect deterioration of the pipeline 

outside of the inspected areas. 

Manhole inspections indicate that some MH structures show minor signs of degradation due to normal 

aging, but no signs of concrete corrosion. Most MHs show signs of infiltration and inflow. Although several 

BOVs are inoperable, none of the inspected valves or piping had leaks or immediate need for repair, and all 

the ARVs are functioning as intended and are in good condition. Based on the observed condition of the 

MHs, concrete MH components should last as long as the pipe; however, metallic MH components will 

require on-going maintenance and eventual replacement. 

Three of the four EPS show minor signs of deterioration in the form of coating failures and thinning pipe 

walls, which do not require immediate attention, but should be monitored going forward.  

BC expects that with regular inspection and periodic maintenance, the transport system should continue to 

operate usefully for at least the next 50 to 100 years. This estimate would put the total expected useful 

operating life at about 100 to 150 years from the date of construction. 

Recommendations 

Based on data review, field studies, and expert analyses, BC recommends the following: 

• Continue to operate the transport system using current standard operating procedures, and monitor 

data to measure condition and behavior changes. 

• Develop a data-collection protocol to track MH, valve, and piping conditions during future on-going 

maintenance and inspection activities. 

• Refine the MH preventative maintenance program based on analysis of the data collected from the MH 

inspections. 

• Rehabilitate or replace the header at Hayward EPS if the pump station is expected to last beyond 10 

years. If the Authority plans to move or replace Hayward EPS within 5 to 10 years, perform spot repairs 

on the header as required as some of the thinner portions of the wall continue to corrode. 

• Remove and replace the failed exterior coatings at the Alvarado, San Leandro, and Hayward EPS. 

• Monitor the EPS exposed piping locations of interest and perform preventative maintenance and 

rehabilitation/replacement of coatings and piping components as required. 

• Measure chloride concentrations at the MDF flow meter vault and at upstream blow-off locations (once 

repaired) in the 96-inch-diameter pipeline to determine if Bay water is intruding into the pipeline. 

• Do not inspect the interior of the 96-inch-diameter Marina-to-Oro Loma segment now. Design and build 

modifications to provide more convenient access for a future pipeline interior inspection. 
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• Carry out internal inspections of additional pipeline segments around year 2030 once inoperable blow-

off valves have been repaired and additional inspection access points become available. Select 

additional inspection locations based on information in the Risk Assessment TM. 

• During the above 2030 inspection, consider inspecting the 96-inch-diameter segment using an ROV 

equipped with video camera and sonar equipment and/or via diver entry. 

• Carry out regular internal pipeline inspections on a 20-year cycle (next in about 2040). Select some of 

the same locations and add additional locations. Select locations based on previous inspection results 

and the information in the Risk Assessment TM. 

• Develop a seismic response plan to guide the Authority’s actions following a significant seismic event. 

Include an evaluation of potential pipeline breaches (number and severity), permitting requirements, 

repair procedures, repair costs, and recommended repair and replacement materials inventory. 

• Following a significant seismic event in the vicinity (i.e. greater than a 6.0 magnitude earthquake), walk 

the entire pipeline looking for leaks, breaches, or other anomalies. Conduct acoustic leak detection 

inspections in the pipeline segments identified in the Risk Assessment TM as having an elevated risk of 

failure due to differential settlement and/or seismic response. 
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Management Agency
Annual Comment on LAVWMA

Issuer Profile
LAVWMA is a Joint Powers Agency that provides wastewater service to three public agencies
in Alameda County, California. The agencies include City of Pleasanton, City of Livermore,
and Dublin San Ramon Services District. The county has a population of 1,605,217 and a high
population density of 2,176 people per square mile. The county's median family income is
$97,145 (1st quartile) and the August 2018 unemployment rate was 3.1% (1st quartile) 2 . The
Agency owns, operates, and maintains an export pipeline and related facilities for wastewater
disposal.

Credit Overview
LAVWMA'S credit position is very high quality, and its Aa2 rating is slightly above the US
wastewater systems median of Aa3. The notable credit factors include a prosperous service
area, robust liquidity, but a small system size, a sufficient debt service coverage and an
extremely large debt profile.

System Characteristics: LAVWMA has a solid system profile overall. That said, the factor
is somewhat weak when compared to the Aa2 rating assigned. The median family income
is a strong 143.1% of the US level. The system size, measured as operating and maintenance
expenses ($3.1 million), is consistent with the US median.

Financial Strength: Overall, the financial position of LAVWMA is superlative and is strong in
relation to its Aa2 rating. The days cash on hand (2,028 days) is excellent and greatly exceeds
the US median. That said, the coverage of the annual debt service by net revenues (1.1x) is
thin and well below other wastewater systems we rate nationwide. Additionally, the debt to
operating revenues (7.8x) is very high and much greater than the US median.

Legal Provisions: Legal provisions, which typically include a rate covenant requiring a
minimum of 1.0x coverage of debt service, are adequate for this sector.

Sector Trends - California Sewer
Water and sewer systems in California tend to be slightly newer than the national average,
though maintenance and expansion needs can be substantial. Financial metrics are generally
modestly stronger than US medians. Median debt service coverage (2.0 times) is on par with
the national median, and median liquidity is quite healthy at 490 days cash. Median debt to
operating revenues (2.7 times) is about 18% above the national average. Water supplies in
California are relatively scarce, highly variable, and concentrated in the state’s north, while
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demand is concentrated in the Central Valley and the urban south. Rate-setting autonomy supports stability in finances.

EXHIBIT 1

Key Indicators 3 4 LAVWMA

Source: Moody's Investors Service

EXHIBIT 2

Days cash on hand has increased from 2013 to 2017

Source: Moody's Investors Service

This publication does not announce a credit rating action. For any credit ratings referenced in this publication, please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on
www.moodys.com for the most updated credit rating action information and rating history.

2          30 October 2018 Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency: Annual Comment on LAVWMA

Item No. 14.3

142 of 146



MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

EXHIBIT 3

Debt service coverage increased from 2013 to 2017

Source: Moody's Investors Service

EXHIBIT 4

Debt to operating revenues decreased from 2013 to 2017

Source: Moody's Investors Service

Endnotes
1 The rating referenced in this report is the rating of the senior most lien on the relevant pledged revenues. Some utilities have bonds separately secured by

distinct revenue sources. For these utilities, the rating referenced in this report is the senior most rating only on the relevant revenue pledge (e.g., water);
the utility could have a higher rating on a different type of revenue bond (e.g., sewer).

2 The demographic data presented, including population, population density, per capita personal income and unemployment rate are derived from the most
recently available US government databases. Population, population density and per capita personal income come from the American Community Survey
while the unemployment rate comes from the Bureau of Labor Statistics.

The largest industry sectors are derived from the Bureau of Economic Analysis. Moody’s allocated the per capita personal income data and unemployment
data for all counties in the US census into quartiles. The quartiles are ordered from strongest-to-weakest from a credit perspective: the highest per capita
personal income quartile is first quartile, and the lowest unemployment rate is first quartile.

3 Moody’s calculations of various statistics can be different than calculations reported in audited financial statements or offering documents. Moody’s
makes standard adjustments to reported financial data, to facilitate comparisons across issuers. For definitions of the metrics in the Key Indicators Table,
see our US Municipal Utility Revenue Debt methodology.

4 The medians come from our most recently published report, Medians - Solid financial metrics, ability to raise rates underpin stable sector .
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LAVWMA Action Item List Month: October 2018

SAG Task Responsible Party Due Date Status Completion 
Date

Items for November 21, 2018 LAVWMA Board Meeting SAG 8/8/2018 Usual reports, FY2017/18 Audit, future need for DSRSD storage, Pleasanton out of area service issue, 
Nutrient Watershed Permit update 8/8/2018

Operations Coordination Committee Task Responsible Party Due Date Status Completion 
Date

FYE 2019 Replacement Projects: See Items Below Delight/Lopez Various dates Refer to information below.

1. Purchase of Three New 500 HP Export Pumps - estimated cost 
$222,000 less liquidated damages. Delight/Weir 9/30/2017

All three pumps have arrived. The first two have been installed, but John Crane split seals failed. 
Analysis has not determined exact cause. Appears to be a misapplication for this system. Options for 
different seals were discussed April 25. Met with MuniQuip April 27. Two options were discussed using 
cartridge seals: new stuffing boxes or an adaptor plate. MuniQuip proposed new stuffing boxes. 
Contract Change Order No. 2 (CCO) issued to MuniQuip on June 20, 2018. Requested information 
provided by MuniQuip. CCO required delivery of stuffing boxes and seals by August 3, 2018. Items 
were available on August 3 and delivered to pump station on August 6. Stuffing boxes installed August 
6. Seal installation, start up, and testing scheduled for August 14, 2018. Troy Firstenberger, American 
Marsh Pumps, was in attendance to oversee the seal installation. Both pumps ran well and they were 
put in the lead/lag position. Later No. 10 started a small leak from the seal and it was taken out of 
service. No. 8 continued in lead with no problems. New Chesterton cartridge seals were ordered and 
delivered to MuniQuip on August 29, 2018. The seals were installed on September 5, 2018. No 
problems were encountered and the pumps are now in lead/lag again. No. 6 motor was rebuilt and the
pump, motor, and seal were installed and successfully tested on October 31, 2018. 

2. Rebuild Three Pumps - estimated cost of $60,000 each, total 
$180,000 Delight 6/30/2019 On hold until the three new pumps have been accepted. Refer to seal issue above.

3. Snorkels and Flow Meters at Junction Structure - estimated cost, 
two snorkels at $25,000 each plus three flow meters at $25,000 
each. Total is $125,000

Portugal/Lopez 6/30/2019
Snorkels were part of original design but not installed. This will improve flow measurement by keeping 
air out of the system along with standardizing the existing meters which are having problems and need 
replacing. Dave Requa will assist to get this project moving forward. 

4. Resealing of all three Storage Basins - estimated cost $200,000 Quinlan 6/30/2018 The basins need to be resealed approximately every ten years. Rebar is showing in some areas.

5. New SCADA System for San Leandro Sample Station (SLSS) - 
estimated cost $95,000 Atendido 12/31/2018

The existing San Leandro Sample Station (SLSS) control system is comprised of 15 year-old 
hardware. This project will replace and program a new programmable logic controller (PLC) at the 
SLSS and integrate the new PLC with the existing SCADA systems at the SLSS and LAVWMA PS. 
The new PLC will match the DSRSD standard of Allen Bradley Logix controllers. A proposal for the 
SCADA replacement has been received and is being reviewed.

6. Replacement of Leaking Pipe for Water Cannons Quinlan 12/31/2018 Project complete. 6/30/2018
Other Items
Trienniel Review of Electrical System Atendido 6/30/2019 To be scheduled.
Wet Weather Issues Fuller 10/31/2018 Meeting held November 1, 2018.
Live test of SLSS system Fuller/Atendido TBD Should be scheduled after replacement of SCADA system

Wet Well Isolation Gates Quinlan 9/30/2018 Gate is in good shape but won't fully close. Shutdown will be scheduled for summer entry only for gate 
assessment, adjustment and possible modification of floor seal.

EBDA Enterococcus Issue Fuller No issues at this time.
YTD O&M Expenses compared to budget Carson, Weir Ongoing Reviewed at every Operations Coordination Meeting.
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